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CANADA 

IN THE MATTER .OF. A COM~118SION appointing the HONOURABLE 
HARRISON ANDREW McKEOWN a Commissioner to enquire into 
and report upon ffairs of the HOME BANK OF CANADA. 

AXD IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION of the Depositors in the said 
HOME BANK OF CANADA . 

Before the Honourable Chief Justice McKeown, the above named Royal 
Commissioner, at Ottawa on Wednesday, the 14th day of May, 1924. 

Counsel: 

EUGENE LAFLEVR, KC., AND H. J. SYMINGTON, K.C., 
for the Government of the Dominion of C • .mada. 

R. "J. McLAUGHLIN, K.C., A. G. BROWNING, K.C., AND W. T. J. LEE, 
for the Depositors. 

McGREGOR YouNt,, K.C., 
for th~ Attorney-Grneral of Ontario. 

R. A. REID, 
for certain shareholders; (Opposing the double liability.) 

Sm THOMAS WHITE, K.C., 
appearing o'n his ou·n behalf. 

Mr. LEE: My lord, when we la'lt met, at the previous sitting, I asked to be 
allowed to put in a statement in reference to the amount of the deposits. I now 
desire to file a statement certified to by Mr. Calvert, who wac, the Assistant 
General Manager of this bank, showing the amount of deposits in the various 
branches when the bank opened on the 31st May, 1916, and the amount of the 
deposit8 on the 31st May, 1918; and the amount of deposits as shown when the 
bank suspended payment on August 17th, 1923. I have shown this to the learned 
CounRel for the Government and they are 8ati,:fied that this should go in. 
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570 ROYAL COMMISSION 

EXIDBIT No. 177. 

Filed by Mr. Lee, May 14, 1924. 

Statement of deposits showing amount on May 31, 1916, May 31, 
1918, and August 17, 1923. 

---- ---=----=============:.....;_..:..;:__.:._~.--==----=====:::::. 
Deposit~ DPposits 

May 31, 1916 May 31, 1918 

Branches npcn may 31st, 1916. 
T1>rontq: 

8 King St. West......... . . . . . . .. . . $1,:l.38, 974 78 $1,767, 7!J3 26 
78 C'hur<'h Rt................................. 1,076,141 24 1,570,316 36 
Queen and Bathu"t.......................... 403,023 58 484,731 99 
Bloor and Bathurst........... . . . . . . . 317,084 92 389,190 91 
Qul'en and Ontario.. . . .. . . . . .. . . . .. .. .. 249 543, 76 296, 61ll 47 i 
West Toronto..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 144,726 25 192,6f,1 42 , 
Broudvicw and Dundas. .. . . . . . .. .. 60,067 40 123,214 31 

1 Yon!!,, and \',oodlawn.................. G-1,541 06 74,3~1 34 • 
Yonge and F,glinton................... 21,660 34 I 

Alfa ton, Ont........... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 310,725 22 562,001 77 
R~lle River.......................... 147,890 99 128,930 531 
(',ilgary, Alta............................. 297,398 86 359,846 56 
<'annington, Ont...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 175,573 32 257,964 49 I 

Depo5its 
Aug. 31, 1923 

$2,424,401 09 
1,583,088 27 

529,256 27 
594,833 53 
354,685 88 
232,436 37 
195. \.141! 74 
148,361 86 

367' 7-53 . 89 
181,831 03 
344,662 70 
217,1.!)5 24 

CrP-SW<·ll, Ont. (Sub to and included in Cannington) .... 
C'rystal Gity, Man.... . . . .. .. . .. . . .. .. . .. . . . . . . . . . 4-dsi' 26 ....... 69; 70fl 05 i ..... 
Dl'laware, Ont...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . 59,780 64 75,408 77 '. 

64,727 00 
106,976 10 
113,843 08 
786,402 04 

L, erctt, Ont. (sub to and inPluded in Alliston). . . 1 

l-Prni<•. B.C........ ................. .. ... . 419j30·40· ... "ilio:605 02. 
noodbnds, Mnn... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49,568 90 75,1!53 40 i 
Grandview, Man.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36, 704 65 189,945 96 I 

60,5\.15 89 
112,401 13 
221, 1190 09 lldert.on, Ont........ .. .. . . . . . .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . 192,043 34 211,356 72 i 

Komoka, Ont. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48,465 51 64,929 87 ' 94,556 75 
206,429 32 
164,094 31 
35G, 616 73 

LawrencP St:ction, Ont......................... 122,813 60 148, 745 84 
Lindsay, Ont..................................... 112,612 49 182,9()4 87 
London, Ont................... 254,974 17 291,214 .:;2 
Lyleton, Man...... . . .. .. . .. . . . . .. . .. . . . .. .. . . 88,933 60 104,555 10 91,530 26 
~fanilh, Ont. (sub to and included in Cannington) .. 
lll!'lbourne, Ont ........................... . 
Montreal, Que .................... . 
Mnntre,il, Bonavrnture .................... . 
~!ontrenl, Hochc\aga ............................ . 
Montreal, Mt. Royal. ........................ . 
Mou,., Jaw, Rask.... . . . . . . . . 
'\'cepawa, Man ................................. . 
P.t.. Thomas, Ont ................................ . 
Sandwich, Ont..... . . . . . . . . . ........ . 
~intalut:L, ~ask ........ ...................... . 
Sunderland, Ont ................................. . 
Tnntallon, Sask. '.sub to and incl. in Welwyn) .... . 
Tecum~Ph, Ont ........... . 
Thorndale, Ont.. . ................... . 
Verdun, Que.... . .................. . 
V. ,dkr,rville, Ont ............ . 
WPlwyn, ~ask ......................... . 
Wey burn, Rask ................. . 
Winnipeg, Man....... . ............. . 

Total. ............................ . 

Branchr~ opened May 31, 1916 to May 31, 1918. 
( ·,,bri, Sas!~............ . . . . . . . ............ . 
Vflncouver, B.C.............. . ........ . 

Total.. .......... . 

·••······· 
121, 392 87 1:;9, :)45 95 214,253 23 

637,171 33 204, 487 42 5:;o, 8tl5 01 1 

::~ :~ ..... is<ooo 531 .... 300,736 ,jj 
26,917 59 .. . .. . . 61, 702 29 

102,121 98 271,45-l 68 249,,'H8 29 
97,121 i;9 211,202 13 I 131,073 45 

127,772 42 153,080 51 146,311 32 
125,340 74 195.~44 23 241,725 9,lj 
53,658 16 71>, 1!77 56 83,059 28 
78,432 32 107,230 45 122, 799 04 

67,o:::i 90 
173,807 ~:l 
33,333 ~l 

107,401 12 
176,587 !J-i 
34,475 M 

553,998 03 

84,041 39 93,617 113 
72,628 76 198, S99 82 

187, 206 26 187, 469 83 
71\, Rt,O 77 ltill, 3-16 23 

2~2, '.:>46 17 282. 463 83 
213,0;-JS 99 142.!!Jl s.i; 
93,400 67 98,a24 46 

1,046,997 21 I 419,097 89 
1------·l------1------

$9,351,282 87 $12,219,201 86 i $13,340,140 32 

I 
131, 751 00 1· 

91,275 54 
111, ~97 02 
14'1, \!96 35 

$0,351 282 87 $12,442. c?8 40 I $13,598.733 69 

Branche.• oprnr,! .\fay 31, 1916 to May 31, 1918. 
Foreign Department.......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... i. 
Ronc,•svalles, Toronto............... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ............. I 117,036 24 
Danforth and uain, Toronto................ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 159, 7G2 76 
Yonge and Charles, Toronto...................... . . . . . · i 95,097 45 
QuP1·n and Kenilworth, Toronto.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 109,XOl 44 
St. Clair aud Glenholme, Toronto..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73,097 32 

Forward ..................•................. 
1
_$_9_,-35-1-, 2_8_2_8_7-J--$12, 442-, 228 40 -$-14-,-15_3_5_2_8_9_0 

~ 

I 



• 

HOI',rn BANK OF CANADA 571 

---=-----,...,..-,c--=---,--,=-c---=--------------====--:-==---c=~----==c..-=c....c...--==--c:-
Deposit~ Deposits DepositR 

May 31, 1916 May 31, 1918 May 17, 1923 

Brought forward. . . . . . . . .. .. . . . .. . . .... $9,351,282 87 $12,442 228 40 $14,153,528 90 

BranchPs owned ,lky 31, 1918 to Aug. 17, 1923-r'on. 
Amulet, Sask.. . . . . . . . . . . . . ...... , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .................. . 
Angus, Ont ................................................................... . 
Arnprior, Ont.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........... . 
Battrum, Sask ............................................................... . 
Blairmore, Alta.... . . .......................................................... . 
Cobo,,onk, Ont.... . . . . .. . . . .. .. . ............ . 
Egan ville, Ont.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ................ . 
Franklin, Man ................................................................... . 
Hamilton, Ont....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Khedive, Sask...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........ . 
London East, Ont. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........ . 
London lllurket, Ont......................... . . . . . . . . . . ........ . 
Ottawa, Ont.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...................... . 
Rorser, Man ............................................................... . 
Scarboro' Ji;nrtion, Ont......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Sh,,,ckleton, Sask ............................................................... . 
Shelburne, Ont .................................................................. . 
St. Jam~s, Man................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Windsor, Ont........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...... . 

4A-Interest Reserved.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 
4C-Unclaim!'d Balances ...................... . 
Due Dominion Government.... . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 
Due Provincial Government...... . . . . .......... . 

$9,351,282 87 $12,442,228 40 

7,000 00 
9,000 00 

500,000 00 
765,000 00 

43,000 00 
4,000 00 

3,151,000 00 
3,226,000 00 

20,222 31 
61, ~10 4l 

231, 133 63 
28, 47!) 51 

188,722 07 
132,897 65 
44, 55() 65 
40,411 ~9 

750,212 -58 
49,499 76 
37,442 01 
53,588 84 

201,81<3 10 
30,207 10 
5,709 46 

30,153 52 
104,570 00 
46,600 37 

145,412 44 

$16,354,844 72 

5,415 94 
11, ,528 50 

241,838 53 
1,234,438 56 

$10,632,282 87 $18,866,228 40 $17,850,006 25 
26 C.-Off....... ...... .. .. . . ..................... . .. .. .. .. .. ... 33,000 00 53,84-1 44 , ______ , ____________ _ 

$10,632,282 87 $18,833,228 40 $17, 79C,'.!21 81 

His LORDSHIP: Exhibit 131 purports to show the deposits in the different 
branche,;. It appears on pages 249 and 250 of the record. That is supple­
mented in this document you now offer by what further particulars, Mr. Lee? 

Mr. LEE: The particulars are, showing the deposits in 1916 and 1918 and 
in 1923 at various periods, for your lordship's. benefit. At each of the respective 
periods mentioned in our statement, in our petition. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Xone of the:::e figures seem to agree. They may require 
some explanation. Your Exhibit 131 at page 250 shows the deposits in 1923 at 
the time of the :;:m:pen"ion at 15 million odd. You must have deducted the 
Government deposits, I suppose? ' 

Mr. LEE: That is exclusive of those Government depo5its. The Govern­
ment deposits due according to this statement to the Dominion Government on 
the 31st J\1ay; 1916, were $300,000 . 

Hi::; LORDSHIP: Let me follow that. Where is that shown? 
Mr. SYMINGTON: We were discu::sing, Mr. Lee, the 1923 amount. Your 

exhibit at page 249, put in by Mr. Browning, shows your deposits at $15,247,000 
Mr. LEE: $15,531,552. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: You now show them at $17,796,221. 
::\Ir. LEE: $17,796,221, yes. 
~Ir. SYMINGTON: Is the difference the Government deposit? 
Mr. LEr:: That is the only explanation that I have to offer, that that is the 

difference. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: We would like that accurately if we can get it. 
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Mr. ::\IcLAUGHLIN: \Ye have a statement :::;bowing the tlepo,it~-pa~e 495 
-exdm-ive of the Government uepn,,it-,. So far a,; tbii;: statement i:- rom·rrned, 
I do not think ,it really atlds anything to what is already in, except tu show 
tl1e fin~tl. , 

::\Ir. Li,:r,.: Mr. Eu,,anb' ,-.tatement, in the exhibit filed by you-Xo. 170-
,.;!rnwed the deposits at $19,295,735, as of June 30th, 1923. 

Mr. i3YMll\GTuK: All I w:mt to get at is how t.his difference is made up. 
If it is made up of the Government deposits, then we understand it. 

Hii;: LORDSHIP: On the face of it that would hardly appear to account for it. 1 

::\Ir. Sn.n~GTON: No, I don't think it does. JI 
Hie; LORDSHIP: No, it does not, on the face of i,t. :\fr. Clarkson during all 

of hi, evidence "as carrful to ;;.ay that the figurr::: he submitted were not or 
might not be entirely accurate, but they were the be,.:t that he could pre,.:ent to 
us at the moment. It may be that this being later, may have rorrrrted inac­
rur:u ies whirh appear in the previous figures. 

::\Ir. Lu;: I think, ;:;ir, the:5e would be absolutely corrrct, because Mr. Cal­
Vl'rt wa::1 the mana;i;n at the time at whirh the bank suspended and he has gone 
ovlr this very carefully and checked up the figure,,; and certified to tlu:m. 

l\Ir. SYMINGTON: L; ;.\Ir. Calvert now in the employ of the liquidator? 
l\Ir. LEE: y cs. 
:\Ir . .::inIIXGToN: It i::1 a rather surpri-,ing thing to di,rlo,,e here that the 

Jepn:-its in 1918 were more than they were in 1923. 
::\Jr. McLAUGHLIN: That is arcounted for by the Government deposits. I 

think all of the:'e :;tatement:::; are correct but thi::1 differs from Mr. EJward::1' in 
tLi~ re~pect, that his statement is of the 31st June and these others are at 
different date::i. 

His LoRDtiHIP: While you are comidering this CJUe,tion of deposit'>, Mr. 
Lee, are you putting forward thi,:; amount of $17,796,221,81 for any purpose of 
<":drnlat.ion? 

Mr. LEE: Xo, the only purpose of it is to show to you, sir, accurately what 
the deposit,'l were "30 for a-, we know them in the~e various period-,. ·we .;how 
that the deposits went up to upwards of 8 millions between May 31st, 1916, 
and May 31st, 1918. Thorn were the dates re-,pedively of annual meeting::; of 
the ,ahareholder;;. And then we show the amount of deposits as of the Jate of 
su-,pl'm,ion. It ha-; alrPady been given in eYideme here, that in 1923 a million 
dollar,.: was drawn out in one depo::iit, and of C'Olir"C that might arrount to ~time 
ext1·nt for that drop .. I do not know whether there wu::; any other money drawn 
out. 

Hi'> LORDSHIP: Ye9, that might be. Now in this statement you have sub­
mitted la~t, showing d<'pu:=-it-- of $17,796,221.81, you include about a million and 
a half uu<· to the differPnt ( ,overnments, don't you? 

::\Ir. Ln;: I include about a million and a half due to the different Govern­
ment:-;, yes, sir. 

:'.\Ir. ::\IcLAGG.HLIN: Those are exeluded as preferred claim-;. 
His LoRDAHIP: Thu~e are preferred claims, and they have to be paid, as 

yo:.i t-ay. 
::\Ir. McLAUGHLIN: . They have been paid in full. 
His LORDtiHIP: H:ave the depositors been paid anything at all? 
Mr. LEE: The depo,,,itors have been paid 25 eent<, on the dollar of their 

dPpo~ib, and that was obtained by a loan by the liquidators, upon all the as.;;ets 
of this in~titu~ion, from the various bank.,; in this country, so that they now 
have a prior hen. After the Government's lien, they have a prior lien on all 
the a;;sets of this institution before any dividend is declared. 

.. 

• 
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His LORDSHIP: Well then, presumably they have made an accurate calcu­
lation of the amounts that they have to pay or the amount that is due at any 
rate in order to make a 25 plr cent payment? 

Mr. LEE: Yes, my lord. 
His LORDSHIP: Have the liquidators made an estimate as to how much 

more they ;will be able to pay? 
Mr. LEE: I do not think they have, my lord. It is only in the public press 

that I have seen some statement that is alleged to have been made by Mr. 
Clark<1on that they mi11:ht be able to pay 15 cents on the dollar. 

Mr. ::3YMINGTON: More? 
Mr. LEE: Yes, more. There is nothing in Mr. Clarkson's evic!ence. Nor 

do I know that he made that statement definitely to the pre:as. 
r Mr. McLArnnuN: In Mr. Clarkson's evidence he states that capital and 

reserve and 9{ millions in_ addition had been lost at the time the liquidation 
began. · 

.. :\Ir. LAFLErR: ·what otrurred to us was that perhaps it might be useful, 
if it is possible, to get some kind of an estimate of the final dividend that the 
depositor::; may expect to get. 

Mr. LEE: I do not think Mr. Clarkson could do more than give you a sug­
ge::;tion of what he thinks, becau"e a great deal will depend upon the value of 
tl:ese various as-,ct~, thcile timber limits and so on; and with the cost of liqui­
dation oi course, to be deducted, so that it is impossible to say. 

Mr. LAFLFrR: You agree with me that the amount of your client's loss will 
depend upon what final dividend may be paid, and we will have to m~ke some 
sug!!;e~tion a" to that. , 

Mr. LEE: Ye;;. Well, that is the statement that was contained in the press. 

Mr. LAFLKCR: Was there any foundation for that do you know? 
Mr. LEE: I think there was. I think Mr. Clarkson did make a .;tatement, 

some weeks before that, that it possibly might be 20 cents on the dollar more. 

Mr. BROWNING: His last statement wa'3; between ten and fifteen cent::;. 
Mr. LEE: Ye:-. 
Mr.' SYMIXGTON: If his estimate was 9½ millions loss, it would appear to 

work out at about that. 
l\Ir. LAFLErR: Then that is as near as we can get to it? 
Mr. Lr..r..~That is as near as we can get to it at the pres'ent time. Of rourse 

if there is very mueh more litigation, a great deal of which is now looming up, 
it may be considerably less. 

His LORDSHIP: Would you make clear to me the connection betweeen the 
1u:;s of the reserve and capital and the amount which the liquidator will be. able 

, to pay in addition t.o the 25 per cent? I did not follow that. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: Sir: if you observe, Mr. Clarbon says, as I underst.lnd 

it, that in his opinion the capital and reserve are gone and in addition to that 
he says there is 9 million odd dollars p;one. Now they have as deposits 17 
million, 9 million of which is gone; that would lrave 8 million with which to 
pay F million less the costs of liquidation. 

l\Ir. McLAUGHLIN: There is 1 million of that whirh is preferred. $15,500,000 
is about the amount. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Mr. Edwards puts the loss, in his estimate, at le;;;; than 
that. He says $7,700,000 or something of that kind. In th:lt there would be 
8 million to pay 17 million. 
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Mr. LEE: Mr. Clarki-on some weeks ago, under cross-examination, put the 
loss between eight and nine and a half millions. At that time he could not say 
anything better than that. 

His LORDSHIP: There is a million and a half to come out of that eight for 
preferred claims I suppose. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: That is reduced to 17 million. Leaving the 16,300,000 
with about 7 to 8 million to pay as far as their estimate goes. 

His LORDSHIP: If you had not any expew,es to pay that would be just half, 
would it not? 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Y cs. 
His LORDSHIP: Well, that i-, what I wanted to follow. I may say I would 

like to have, from some quarter or other, as accurate an estimate as can be 
furnished of the amount which would be neces;,ary to be advanced in case the , 
loi::s were made up. I can see how a Committee might ask that question the 
very first thinir, how much will this involve, and I would like to embody in my 
report something which would throw light upon that. 

Mr. LEE: \Vould a letter from ~1r. Clarkson at the present time be sufficient? 
His LORDSHIP: I suppose he would be the best one to give it. 
Mr. LEE: It would save us recalling him. If a letter from Mr. Clarkson 

to your lord~hip would be sufficient and would :;atisfy my learned friends we 
will undertake to get that and put it in. 

His LORDSHIP: I would like to have it in some form or other. 
Mr. LAFLELR: If that incident is clo:oed, may it please your lord,-hip, the 

Honourable Mr. Robb is in attendance, and as we do not wish to keep him 
waiting I propose that he should be heard. 

His LORDSHIP: Certainly. 

Hon. JAMES A. RoBB, sworn. 

ExaminPd by Mr. Symington: 
Q. Mr. Robb, you are Acting Minister of Finance for the Dominion Govern-

mmt ?-A. Yes. · 
Q. And you were Acting Minister of Finance in the month of August, 1923? 

-A. I wa,;; temporarily acting for Mr. Fielding during his absence. 
Q. What was your first intimation as to the Home Bank being in difficul­

ties?-A. Oh, that was the evening that Mr. Stewart, one of the Directors, 
arrived from Toronto. 

Q. Arrived from Toronto?--,A. Yes. 
Q. And communicated with you?-A. I reoall that the Honourable ~fr. 

Grabam, my colleague, telephoned to my room and wanted to see me along with 
a man from Toronto. He brought Mr. Stewart up to my room, and there Mr. 
Stewart told us of the position of the Home Bank. He said that it came as a 
shock to them. The Manager had died and they had put in a new Manager, 
and when he had advised them of the condition he found the bank in he stated 
that they had called in a man in whom they had confidence to make an examin­
ation, and he had verified the statement. and advi:;ed them to come out in the 
open and tell the Government frankly just their pol'-ition. That was h.is mission 
down to Ottawa. 

Q. And as a result of that conversation, Mr. Robb, what did you do?-A. 
\Yell, we located the Prime Minister who was out at dinner, and I recall having 
told him that a situation had developed which I thought he should know at 
once, and, we arranged to go down to his house upon his return. It was getting 
on late, I think it was about eleven o'clock when we went down there. 

• 
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Q. Yes. Now, the Prime Minister has told u~ about that evening. Have 
you read his evidence, Mr. Robb?-A. Yes, and just in that regard, when I read 
the Prime Mini5ter's evidence, I noticed that he seemed to be in doubt ac:i to who 
was present beRides Mr. Graham, Mr. Stewart and myself, and indicated that he 
thought possibly it was the Honourable Mr. Low. I have talked that over with 
the Prime Minister and refreshed his memory, and I have his authority to s~y 
that he is now satisfied that the other person present was not the Honourable 
Mr. Low but was the Deputy MiniRter of Finance, Mr. Saunders. 

Q. And that agrees with your recollection?-A. Yes, I had telephoned Mr. 
Saunders to come to the hotel before we went down there. 

Q. Apart from that, do you substantially agree with what the Premier says 
about the meeting that night?-A. Yes. 

Q. Then what next did you have to do with the matter?-A. Well, after 
that conference that night, Mr. Stewart told us that two other of the Directors 
were coming to Ottawa in the evening. They arrived in Ottawa in the morning, 
and I had a conference with the three of them in my room in the hotel. 

Q. Those other two being?-A. Mr. Casey Wood and Mr. Gough. I migM 
say that they were urging the Government to make a deposit, and represented to 
us that they feared unleRs they had some other funds they would have to close. 
I recall that they gave us one reason why their funds were going out rapidly, 
and that was that they had on deposit a considerable amount of .funds from the 
Government of the Province of Ontario, and that the Province of Ontario was 
then is;:;uing cheques to meet the paymentR of school grants that were due, and 
that·was withdrawing rapidly funds they had available. 

I n:eed not say to you that we absolutey refused to make any deposit on 
their own statement as presented to us. We would not have been justified, but 
we were anxious to have this bank steadied, if possible. They represented that 
they had sought the aid of other banks in Toronto and wanted to know what to 
do, and they suggested that they might go to Montreal and see the larger 
banks there. They went to Montreal on the noon train. I went to Montreal on 
the afternoon train, as I wanted to keep fully posted as to what progress they 
were making. It had been arranged before I reached there that they should have 
a meeting with Sir Vincent Meredith of the Bank of Montreal that evening, an<i 
I recall that Mr. Spinney, Sir Vincent's confidential man, came down to the 
Ritz Hotel to pilot us up to Sir Vincent's hou5e, and we went up there about 
nine o'clock. 

The Directors preRented their position very fully to Sir Vincent Meredith 
who went .into it carefully. I made it clear to him that I was only there as an 
onlooker, interested as acting for the Minister of Finance to know just what 
position this bank was in, and to know what could be done to save the situation. 

After looking into it fully, Sir Vine;ent did not offer very much hope but 
said he would like to look it over again in the morning, and if there was a 
possibility, in any way, that he might be able to help them out long enough until 
they were able to arrange an amalgamation with some stronger· bank, but, 
grnerally speaking, he thought they should take advantage of the clau5e in the 
Act and appoint a curator at once, and that would give them ninety days to 
arrange for an amalgamation with another bank. • 

Q. That is the substance of the conversation ?-A. That is the substance of 
the conversation. I left them that night after we returned from Sir Vincent 
Meredith's. I walked down with them, and we parted there in the rotunda and 
I came to Ottawa next morning. 

Q. And is that all the connection you had with the matter?-A. Yes. We 
were watrhing it very closely. As I recall it, two or three days after that they 
appointed a curator and went into liquidation. 

Q. The next day I think it was?-A. Yes. 
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Cro~1,;-E.ramincd by Jlr. JlcLaugl,lin: 
Q. Mr. Robb, did they ::iUbmit any report tu you a'l to the artual state of 

the bank?-.A.. They submitted a sL1tement that tlwy lwd harl prepared of their 
condition. 

Q. You have not got the :,tatC'ment?-A. No, I have not got the ~tatrment. 
Q. And wa':l that 1Ir. Calvert's statement, the Assi::-tant Genc•ral ::\Ianager? 

-A. Xo, it was a ,:tutement that had ben prepared for them by ~ir Thoma<; 
White. They s;_iid to me when l\lr. CalvC'rt had told them of their position that 
they wantPd to p;Pt some man who could dig into it and get them the truth, and 
that they had located ~ir Thomas White up the count.ry somewhere and brought 
him down, and that he had prepared the statemrnt. It wa~ on Sir Thonrn<; 
White\- advice that they had made a frank statement to the Government anJ 
the BankPrs' Association of their position. 

Q. ·well, what did that 8tatemeht show their position to be?-A. Well, 
rathC'r hopeles::;. 

Q. Insolvent?- A. I should say so. 
Q. Do you know to what extent it showed their defirirncy to bP?-A. I 

cannot give you the figure~, no. I kept no memorandum of tho:se figure>'. 
Q. \Yell, then, th,tt statement was prC':"c•ntrd to ::-ir•Vincent Meredith I 

suppu:-se ?-A. Yes. Tlwy made practirully the ~ame :,tatrmcnt to Sir Vint•l0 nt 
::\km-lith that th<'~' had to tli(• repres1·nbtiYC~ of the Government. 

Q. He seemed to think the bank was too far gone to be i.--wed?-A. Appar­
ently that was the condu...:ion he reached. 

Cro.,s-E.ramined by Jfr. Rrid: 
Q. Mr. Robb, you say that when you went to l\lontreal and called on Rir 

VincPnt l\Ieredith that evening he sugge:;;ted that there might be an attempt 
made to amalgumate with rnme other b1ink-,?-A. I under,-,tuod that they had 
bPPn hopinii; for that, the Dirertors had beC'n hoping for that. 

Q. Y l's, but what I say il" that Sir Virn·ent :'.\ieredith sugii;e::;ted that at his 
hou,e that evening?-A. Ko, he did not sugge>'t that. He ::;uge;ested that he 
would look into it and "ee if it were po:"sible that he could advance them monC'y 
enough until they could attrmpt to arran!(e an amalgamation. 

<al- Did you, ii:-: Finance Minister, or the Government, fake any ,-.trp-, aft.Pr 
that, during the W ednr,;day evening prior to the Friday of Augu::-t 17th when the 
bank rnspt·ndcrl, or make any attempt to a..;~j,,t them to obtain an amalgamation 
with another bank?-A. No. 

Q. Now, in the eviden1e of the Prime ::\-linister given on Friday the 9th day 
of l\I ay he ~aid: 

"I rcceiYed a phone call from one of my colleagues mentioning that 
l\Ir. F. l\I. ~t.1•w:1rt nf Toronto wa-, in the citv, and had been in eonver­
c;ation with :\Ir. Robb, the,Arting ;\finistcr of Finance at the time." 

Can you tdl us who the colleague was that called l\1r. King up at his house? 
A. I did not call him at hi-, home, I ralled him where he ,vas dining. He was at 
another hou<,e' dining that evening. It was I who ralled him. 

Q. And arranged for a meeting at his hom,e at ten or eleven o'clock?-.A 
Yes. I "uggc::-ted to Mr. King that a situat.ion had developed that I thought he 
should know at once. 

Q. That wa-, on Tue,,day evening?-A. Well, I rannot tell you the eYening. 
The records go to show it must haVC' been the evening of the 14;th. 

Q. August 14th, 1923. Xow, did you have any interview with any of the 
Dirertors of the Home Bank on ;\londay?-A. No. 

Q. The first interview you had with any of the Dirertors of the Home Bank 
was on that Tuesday evening when l\Ir. Stewart arrived in the City?-A. Yes, 
rather late. 
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Q. And Mr. King, the Prime Mini-,ter, in his evidence says­

Mr. SYMINGTONS Page, please. 

577 

Mr. REID: Page 560. The Prime Minister says that Mr. Stewart told him 

hr· had C'ome to plaC'c the -:ituation before the Government. He said he had 

consulted with Sir Thomas White in Toronto, and that Sir Thomas had advi ,ed 

that he should Ree the Government, and in the next paragraph, on t.he same 
page:- • 

"When he"-that is meaning Stewart I presume-"had outlined the 

situation, I asked him what it was that he wished to place partirularly 

bPfoi:'e the Government. He said he had rome really to find out if it 

would n,ot be poo::c::ible for the Government to make a deposit v.rith the 
bank-

And then in the fourth paragraph, page 560, Mr. King says: 

"I was aghast when the suggestion W3.!:l made, and immediately 1,aid 

t.hat the circum-;tanC'es which he had mentioned were suflkient in them­
Reives to make it impo,::,:ible for the Government to com;ider for a moment 
tram;ferring any of the publir funds-" 

And then in the next paragraph:-
"Then Stewart waR anxious to know whether the Government would 

lend it-.; good offiC'e:- to have the Bankers' As:oociation-" 

Then a few lines down in the same paragraph: 

Mr. Ln: I think my learned friend should read the vd10le of it. 

1Ir. REID: I do not want to encumber the record by reading the whole page. 

Q. What I want to show is this. Mr. Robb, at the time that you had that 

meeting at the Home of the Prime Minister on the evening of August 14th, 1923, 

it was a meeting of the Dominion Cabinet. • 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Well, surely that iR a queotion-

• l\1r. REID: Ju-it Rit down, don't gc>t so excited. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: I will not sit down and my friend is not going to tell me 

to sit down. · 

Mr. REID: I don't want to get mad. 
Mr. RYMINGTON: I wish you would then I could handle you. The fact is, 

if my friend is going to establiRh a Cabinet meeting then, of C'ourse, he cannot 

get any answers to his questions. It is very simple, it was I\Ot a Cabinet meeting. 
Mr. REID: My lord, what I want to show is thi'>. On page 560, when the 

Prime MiniRtcr refers to the meeting at his house, he refers to the fact that Mr. 

Stewart was there to place the matters before the Government, and what I 
want to ,ask is this, that having placPd these matters before the Government we 
are entitled to know, from fir:,t to last, everything that took place between that 

timP and the date of the su~pension of the bank, that is all. 

His LORDSHIP: You ran a::;k Mr. Robb the que:-stions, and if there arc any 

objeC'tion,:; I can rule on them. 
Mr. REID: Then did you con::,ider that a meeting of the Cabinet? 

The WrTNEss: No. 
Q. You di1l not?-A. Ko. 
Q. Wl1en you went to Montreal on t}iat afternoon of August 15t!1, how long 

dicl the meeting at Sir Vmcent Merc-dith':, hou:,,e last?-A. Well, I cannot tell 

that offhand. \Ve were there quite a time, I imagine, perhaps a couple of hours. 

I cannot tell you offhand. • 
Q. And he asked you to wait over till the next day in 2\fontreal?-A. No, 

no, he did not a~k me to wait over. 
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Q. I umlerstood you to say that Sir Vinrcnt Meredith asked until next 
morning to look into the situation and see what could be done.-A. He sug­
geskd to the Directors that he would look into the situation next morning. 

Q. But you were there reprePenting the Dominion Government?-A. I was 
there looking on to see if the Government could be helpful, or see in what way 
we could protect the situation. 

Q. Now, following the meeting at Mr. King's hom1e on the night of August 
14th, 1923, that is Tue;;,day, Mr. King haR told us, in his evidence, that there 
was a meeting·of the whole Cabinet on Wednesday, August i5th. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Mr. King did not say that. Mr. King said there was the 
ui::ual CabinE.:t meeting on Wednesday; he did not say a full qabinet meeting. 

Mr. REID: Mr. King does not say anywhere that t_here was the usual 
Cabinet meeting on Wednesday. I would like my learned friend to point that 
out. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Show the Commi,,sion where he said there was a full 
Cabinet meeting. My learned friend's questions are so inaccurate that I think 
he should guard himself. 

Mr. REID: Your answers are equally inaccurate. 
Q. Then following the meeting at Mr. King's house on Tur,-day evening, 

in the ordinary course you would report that matter to the Dominion Cabinet? 
-A. It wa:-1 a conference in Mr. King's house. 

Q. And you reported that?-A. Is my honourable friend aware of the oath 
of a Cabinet Minister? 

Q. Yes. I am not asking what you said at the Cabinet meeting or what 
you did, I am not asking anything confidential, I am asking if in the ordinary 
course of Government busine:os you would or did report that matter to the Gov­
ernment the following morning? 

Mr. SYMINGTON: You need not answer. 
The WITNF..ss: I have made it a rule never to dif"C'Uf"fl Cabinet matters, 

ewn with my colleagues·, out'-ide of the Cabinet room. That is about the only 
way a Mini~ter can keep out of trouble. 

Q. So you did report the conferenre?-A. I have not f"aid I did. 
Q. I am a<:king you?-A. I am not i'>aying whether I did or not. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: Will your lordship rule on that. · 
His LORDSHIP: Mr. Robb seems to be well advised aR to his rights. I under­

stand he is declining to answer. 
Mr. REID: All I will say is that I think it is unfair to the shareholders at 

any rate, speaking for them, to have a Cabinet Minister, I do not care who he 
is, hide--

His LORDSHIP: Do not reflect on the witnes.,, if you pleat:1e. 
Mr. REID: Not on the witness, any Cabinet Minit:1ter who tries to hide 

behind the serrecy of the Cabinet, I do not think it is fair. All I want to know 
is if the matter was reported to the Government, I am not a~king anything ebe, 
but the simple question ;-was the conference at Mr. King's house reported to 
the Dominion Government as it ,-hould be. Do you refm,e to an:;wer?-A. Yes. 

Q. Now at the conferenre at Mr. King's house on that evening of August 
14th, 1923, you :::ay that Mr. Stewart who came there with a ~btement a::;ked 
for a deposit of some kind. Can you tell u:-1 the amount he asked for?-A. No 
I cannot tell you the exact amount. 

Q. About the amount ?-A. I could not tell you that, but we gathered from 
their statement that they would require a considt>rable amount. 

Q. You remember that it w.as August 14th, 1923?-A. I have looked that 
up by dates I had in my book. 
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Q. And you remember that you called Mr. King up at the house where he 
was dining?-A. Yes. 

Q. And you remember the meeting at his house at about 11 o'clock?-A. 
Yes I remember that. 

Q. Can you remember that the amount was not say, $5,000,000, or $10,000,-
000?-A. I would not say what the amount was. 

Q. I am not asking you to say what it was but can you remember about 
what it was?-A. Now you cannot put words into my mouth, sir. 

Q. Wa~ it $10,000,000?-A. I have given you my answer, you cannot put 
words into my mouth. 

Q. Do you refuse to answer?-A. No I do not refuse. 
Q. You say you have suffered from a lapse of memory?-A. No I do not, 

I say I do not carry amounts of dollars and cents in my head from day to day. 
I am not going to pin myself down to any question of dollars. 

Q. I am not asking you to pin yourself down to any exact amount, I am 
asking can you remember about the amount? You remember all the details 
in connection with the meeting on Tuesday and all the details in connection with 
the meeting on ""."ednesday, both in Ottawa and in Montreal, but you can 
remember nothing at all as to whether it was $100 or $5,000,00 that was asked 
for at that meeting. 

Mr. LEE: Does it matter? 
The WITNESS: It was a considerable amount. 
Mr. REID: All right. You say Mr. Graham came to the house that evening 

with the others.-A. Yes. · 
Q. Did you all arrive there together?-A. Yes, I recall that it was a very 

wet night and we took a car and drove down. 
Q. That was on Tuesday night. On the following Wednesday you had a 

meeting with the Directors of the Home Bank, all who came to Ottawa?-A. I 
met inform'ally thec;e three Directors in my room. 

Q. Mr. Gough was there?~A. Yes. 
Q. Wa:, Mr. Graham there?-A. No. 
Q. Do you know if Mr. Graham had an interview with Mr. Gough at all 

at any time in reference to this matter?-A. I could not tell you. 
Q. Was ::\fr. Fielding in Ottawa during that period, that memorable week? 

-A. No, Mr. Fielding was away for a much needed rec;t. 
Q. At what time of day to your knowledge did Mr. Stewart arrive in Ottawa 

on that Tuesday?-A. I could not tell you exactly but I inferred that he had 
arrived on the train which reaches Ottawa· in the evening. 

Q. What other Ministers of the Crown to your knowledge had an interview 
with the Directors of the Home Bank?-A. I know of no Minister;, other than 
those I have mentioned. 

Q. What other Ministers of the Crown to your knowledge, had any know­
ledge whatever of the coming of the Directors of the Home Bank to Ottawa on 
that Tuesday evening?-A. I do not know that any of the Ministers knew they 
were coming until they arrived on Tuesday evening. 

Q. Did you talk this Home Bank matter over with any other Members of 
the Dominion Government after the conference at Mr. King's house on Tuesday 
night?-::-A. I said a few minutes ago that as a Cabinet Minister I have made it 
a rule never to discu,;s quec;tion<, outside of the Cabinet room. That is a safe 
way to keep out of trouble. 

Q. Did you have an interview with any Members of the Dominion Cabinet 
after the Cabinet meeting on WedneRday?-A. I could not tell you that, I 
cannot recall. 

Mr. REID: You see, my lord, it may seem irrelevant but the !'lignificant thing 
is-
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Mr. SYMINGTON: The:;e explanations are irrelevant. 
_Mr. REID: I want to get rnme quei::tion:; amwercd and I want t-0 explain 

what I want. 
Mr. SYMDWTON: The be,;;t way is to explain to his lordship instead of 

putting speeche;:; on the record for the newspapers. 
Mr. REID: I am not thinking of the newspapers. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: One wonders what ebe you are doing. 
Mr. REID: You can <.:orrect a lot of ubu~e" through the newspapers that 

you cannot otherwise. 
The significant fact is that on Wedne-,day, August 15th, following the 

Cabinet mePting in the morning, the Honourable )Ir. Murdock goes aero-,;:; the 
strPlt and draw:; out hi;_.; drpo,-ib and on the Thunaday morning next he dra"·:;: the 1 
rest. 

:\fr. LEE: It appear:; to me thnt when your lord,-hip gave my learnerl friend 
the opportunity of cro--,;-examining on behalf of certain shareholder::; it was not 
your intention to give him unlimited scope to go into all these matters and 
perlw,ps delay us for a considerable time. I mu'3t object to my friend going into 
a lot of matters that are ab-,olutely irrelevant to our case. 

11r. McLACGHLrn: This being the depo,-itors' case we ought to have charge 
to .,ome extent of the way it is presented. \Ye have endeavoured to bring out 
the farts without attacks on anyone, but Mr. Reid come;.-; d9wn lwre, rnppo,,ecl 
to be repre,;enting sharPholdPrs, and at the last meeting he made a statement with 
reference to Sir Thoma.:l White which the public have blanwd u-, fur, they ;;ay 
we are making personal attacks and playing politic,., which we have endeavoure:I 
entirely to avoid. I think if Mr. Reid wants to make a case for the shareholders 
it ,,hould be taken up independent of and subseqm·nt to our caf'e. 

His LORDSHIP: I think that is right. I think, Mr. Reid, on the objection 
being taken, you had better confine your. questioning of this witness and any 
subsequent witnesses to something pertinf'nt to the d!'poi,:itor:;' case. Not th:1t 
you will not be given the opportunity in the further work of the Commission to 
develop this line of enquiry if you wish, but a'l the objection ha-i been taken 
I think you should limit your questions to such a:; have some bearing on the 
matter we are trying out just now. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Might I also suggest that the counsel confine his efforts to 
questions, not statements. 

Mr. REID: \,Yell, some counsel cannot di,;tingui-,h between a que::;tion and 
a statement. With reference to one statement by Mr. McLaughlin, all I mid 
was, I drew your lordship's attention to a newspaper report in the Globe and the 
Ottawa Journal that Sir Thomas Whit€ had got a $1,500 fee a couple of days 
before the bank closed, and I suggested that he should be given opportunity to 
come here and explain. I made no reflection on Sir Thomas "'hite or anyone 
else, I simply clrew the matter to your lordship's attention. 

:Mr. SnnNGTON: I think you :;aid he should be haled here. 
Mr. REID: Now one or two more questions. When you got to :\1ontrcal 

on Wednesday afternoon or evening what was the first thing you did? 

No. 

The WITNESS: I think I went and had some dinner. 
Q. And after that?-A. Probably had a smoke. 
Q. Did you pen;onally telephone Sir Vincent Meredith's house?-A. No. 
Q. You had no communication whatever with him over the telephone?-A. 

Q. When you want to interview the Bankers' Association I presume that as 
a rule, being Finance Minister and occupying a high position in the Government 
of the country, you would send for them to come to your office? 

• 
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Mr. SnnNGTONb Is this material to the depositors' rase or any other rase? 
The \VITNEi-s: I have no comment to make, I am not asking you any 

que.-tions as to what your presumption in the matter is. 
Mr. REID: Do you usually, when you wish to interview the Bankers' Asso­

riation concerning a bank whirh is in trouble, i::end for the Bankers' Association 
to come to your office or do you go and see them ?-A. When the banks get int~ 
trouble, m, the experience of the Home Bank sho'ws, they come to us. 

Q. And when you want to find out what the Bankers' Association will do, do 
you ask them to come and see the Finance Mini:;ter or does the Fmance ::Min­
ister go and :-;ee them ?_::_A. Oh that might be a matter of convenience. 

Q. Who made the arrangements with the Dominion Government for tlw 
Home Bank Directors to come to Ottawa ?-A. There was no arrangement made 
with the Dominion Government. 

Q. Well, with any Cabinet Minister of the Dominion Government?-A. No. 
Q. The fin,t intimation you had was when ?-A. I have told you that a fe,v , 

minutes ago . 
. Q. When Mr. Stewart called you up?-A. No, ~Ir. Graham. I gave that 

in my evidence a moment ago. 
Q. So that Mr. Stewurt had been to see Mr. Graham before he saw you?­

A. I imagine he looked up Mr. Graham who wao; stopping in the hotel then I 
think. 

Q. And you eannot give us any dcLtils wha.tever as to the amount asked for 
or anything concerning the reporting of that interview of Tuesday to the 
Dominion Government_ the follo,Ying morning'?-A. You would not expect me to 
carry those figure~ around in my hcud all the time. 

Cross-Exarninted by Sir Thomas White: 
Q. I need not say, Mr. Robb, that I had no intention when I came here this 

morning of cross-examining you. I came as a witness. But his lordship has 
kindly allowed me to act also as my own counsel and there is one statement you 
made that to my mind is, unintentionally on your part of course, inaccurate and 
I wish to clear it up. 

You said in evidence that the report whirh was presented to you was my 
report. Now I wi~h you to just recall the circumstances to your mind clearly. 
Was it nbt a letter of advire which I gave upon the Calvert report ?-A. Oh, yes 
that is right, it was your letter. 

Q. Ju:::t one other thing, that you did not touch on, but which was touched 
on in the Prime Minister's evidence the other day. He said that he understood 
that I had advised either Mr. Ste1vart or the deputation to lay the facts pefore 
the Government and the Bankers' Association. He did not say in his evidence 
that I had advised anybody to ask for a deposit from the Dominion Govern­
ment. Now I do not understand yoll to say that in my letter of advice I had 
suggested that they should ask for a. depo::;it from the Dominion Government.­
A. I made no such statement. 

Q. I said you had not. I wa5 referring to the Prime Minister's statement. 
Unfortunately he was misreported. You agree that as far as your recollection 
goes my advice was to lay the facts before the Government and the Bankers' 
As::ioriation?-A. As I said a moment ago, freely and frankly. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: I think Mr. Reid asked Mr. Crerar to come back for 
some questions. 

Hon. T. A. CRERAR recalled: (already sworn) 

Examined by Mr. Reid: 
Q. The last time you were here I referred to the stock which you held in 

your own name, and also to the stock which was transferred from the Grain 
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Growers' Company to Mr. Daly and sub:::equently dealt with in some way; and 
I asked you at the time whether the stock you received for yourself was bonus 
stock, and I think you :::aid, No.-A. That is correet. At any rate it was not 
bonus :;tock. 

Q. What year did you become connected with the United Grain Growers' 
Company?-A. I was elected a Director and President in July, 1907. 

Q. And you were a Director and President from that time until when?­
A. "Up until the present. 

Q. You are still connected with them ?-A. I explained that in my evidence. 
Q. Well, I do not want the detail, but ·you are still Pm;:ident and connected 

in some way?-A. I am still Presidtnt of the United Grain Growers Limited, 
and of course a Director. 

Q. In the early days of the operations of the Home Bank in the West were 
you engaged in sPlling any stork of the Home Bank?-A. Our company was 
i:;elling shareR in the bank in Western Canada. We had that arrangement with 
the bank as agents. 

Q. What wa::; the name of your company in thoRe days?-1\. The Grain 
Growers' Grain Company. 

Q. Do you recognize this as a prospectus isRued by the Grain Growers' 
Grain Company selling Home Bank stock in the West?-A. I think probably it 
is. I remember some literature was· prepared at the time. It is ten or twelve 
years ago and it is difficult t-0 recall it. 

Q. I suppm:e you, in order to advance the interests of the Home Bank in 
the W e::;t in the way of securing deposits and rnlling shares of st-Ock, you your­
self took an active part in doing that?-A. Doing what? 

Q. Selling st-Ock and boosting the bank in the West?-A. No; I do not 
know what you mean by an active part. 

Q. Did you youri:;elf perrnnally sell any stock in the Home Bank as an 
agent?-A. I cannot recall that I did; my duties were very numerous outside 
of selling stock. 

Q. As a vendor of the stock in the West the Grain Grower's Grain Company 
was an agent for the Home Bank, was it?-A. We were an agent for the Home 
Bank in selling the stock. 

Q. Did you yourself receive any commission of any amount for the sale of 
the stork of the Home Bank?-A. You mean per::ionally? 

Q. Yes.-A. Xo, sir; not a cent. 
Q. Did you receive any remuneration from the Grain Growers' Company, 

as it wa-, then called, for your services in connection with the sale of Home 
Bank stock in the West?-A. Not a cent. 

Q. Then did you know a gentleman named Kennedy whose name appears 
on this prospectus, one of the Directors of the Grain Growers' Company?-A. 
Yes, I know Mr. Kennedy. 

Q. He was connected with the rompany at the same time as you were I 
presume?-A. Ye::;, he was a Director of the company. 

Q. Was he selling any Home Bank stork in the West?-A. He may have 
been; I cannot recall any partieulars of that. 

Q. He may have been selling 'it personally?-A. As an officer of the com­
pany. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Do you mean for the company or for himself?-A. Oh, 
for the company. 

I 
Mr. REID: It would look from this prospectus that there wa::i some arran!!e-

ment made with Mr. Kennedy or you or whoever would sell st-Ock for the Grain 
Growers' Grain Company to receive remuneration as commission for the sale 
of the stock they sold in the West?-A. Receive remuneration from--? 
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Q. From the Grain Grower::;' Grain Company Limited ?-A. No. 
Q. Or the Home Bank?-A. The Home Bank was paying a commiRRion 

to the Grain Growers' Company for the sale of shares. 
Q. And of course it was to the interest of the Home Bank and the Grain 

Growers to sell all the stock they could in the West?-A. Well, I do not know 
that it was particularly to the interest of the Grain Growers Limited. 

Q. Well, the Gmin Growers' Company would receive commission from the 
Home Bank?-A. The commis:,ion was a small thing, as I recall, 5 per cent. 

Q. Can you remember how much stork the Grain Growers Co. sold in the 
west?-A. No, I cannot. 

Q. You have no idea whatever?-A. I cannot recall, no. 
Q. What influence,:; were used in the west to get farmers and western people 

so largely interested in the stock of the Home Bank, what was the method of 
operation?-A. I do not recall that any particular influences were used. I 
remember at that time there were a great many districts in Western Canada 
without banking facilities and we were a farmers' company and our officers and 
directors were frequently asked by farmers to use our influence with the banks 
to get branches opened, not alone the Home but other bank:;, to provide facili­
ties at points where no banks were located. 

Q. And I suppose the~e farmers in the west who were dealing with the 
Grain Growers Co. would now and again have some stock offered them if they 
wished to buy it, I suppo':ie that is one way of doing it, customers of the Grain 
Growers Company would be offered shares in the Home Bank by the company? 
-A. Oh, yes, anyone who wished to buy the share;:; had the opportunity of 
doing i'O. 

Q. And the selling of stock in a farming community is as a rule rather a 
difficult and exceptional operation to a farmer who doe::, not understand the 
value of stocks?-A. No, I would not i:tgree with that at all. 

Q. But when you did undertake to sell some stock in the west you found 
little difficulty in having the formers take it if they had the money to do so?­
A. I do not know what you mean by "difficulty." For instance, if a branch of the 
Home Bank was opened the people of that district were interested in that fact, 
and as I believe happened in the case of other banks also they frequently bought 
stock. 

,Q. And the Grain Growers Company issued a prospectus in which they 
say:- 1 

" Take this opportunity of getting in on the ground floor, not of a 
vi::,ionary· bank but of one strongly established and paying good divi­
dend,:. Let us have a Home Bank which would be the people's bank. 
Read this prospectus and learn about it and think' about it." 

That was the first intimation I suppose that the farmers in the west had of 
stork in the Home Bank being for sale?-A. No, I think the matter was referred 
to in the newspapers. 

Q. But you used this prospectus for all it was worth to sell the stock to 
the farmers?-A. That prospectus was probably sent out, I cannot throw my 
mind back ten or twelve years,-in fact it is longer than that, that was, four­
teen years ago. 

Q. Did you recommend the stock to any one?-A. You mean personally?' 
Q. You, personally?-A. I cannot recall that I did, no. 
Q. You might have done so?-A. Well, I cannot recall. You are asking 

me to go back and recall conversations I may haYe had ~ixteen years ago, and 
I am r,orry my memory· is limited, I cannot do it. 

Q. You bought stock yourself to the extent of 40 shares at one time and 
26 share<i another time?-A. I bought some shares, yes. 

Q. Per:::onally?-A. Yes. 
79137-2 
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Q. You were a holder of 66 t:>hares yourself for which you paid how much? 
-A. I told you the other day my memory is I paid $124 and $125 a share. 

Q. :No, I think that is not in the evidence.-A. I think you will find it in 
the evidence. 

Q. Then you sold it after you became a member of the Government, in 
October, 1917, I think you said you sold ou,t your shares some time in 1918?­
A. No, if you will read my evidence you will see I stated that I sold part of it­

Q. In 1918?-A. Some time in that summer or autumn of 1918, and the 
balance in 1923. 

Q. And how much did you get for it when you sold it, do you remember? 
-A. No. I think I mentioned it the other day. 

Q. No, it does not say. It is not in evidenC('.-A. I cannot recall, Mr. 
Reid. I thought it was around either under or over 70 for the first lot that was 
sold. 

Q. And how much for the second ?-A. It was over 90. 
Q. When you bought that stock did you buy it from the Home Bank or 

from the Grain Growers, Limited ?-A. f bought it from the Home Bank. 
Q. Direct?-A. I bought it through a broker. • 
Q. Where, in Winnipeg?-A. In Winnipeg, yes, as I recall. 
Q. There is another thing I want t-0 ask you about. Just one more ques­

tion and I will be through. In addition to booRting the sale of the stock of the 
Home Bank to the farmers in the West, did the United Grain Growers Com­
pany, Limited, or the Grain Growers Company, Limited, indure the employees of 
the company to use the Home Bank as a depo,-itory for their money'?-A. No, I 
cannot n,eall that that was done. As a matter of fact, the majority of the 
employees of the company, I think, had their accountc, in the Home Bank; 
became the company had its account there. I had my own perrnnal account 
ill' the Home Bank. 

Q. But you did not lose any money in the Home Bank?-A. No, I had 
money on deposit in the Home Bank when the crash came, and my personal 
account had been kept in the bank until that time, but as it happened, I had 
borrowed some money from the bank and was owing the bank i::ome money, 
and the curator gave a ruling that one offaet the other. 

Q. So you did not lose anything in the Home Bank?-A. I did not lose 
anything myself. 

Q. And you sold your stork out before the crash came also'?-A. I sold my 
stock. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: That is a very misleading question; you should not ask it 
in that form. 

Mr. RErn: It is in evidenre and we understand it. 
Q. Now the employees of the Grain Growers Company, Limited, or the 

United Grain Growers Company, Limited, u:::ed the Home Bank as a place to 
deposit their moneys, and when the Home Bank failure came did the employees 
of the Grain Growers Company, Limited, or the United Grain Growers Com­
pany, Limited, have money on deposit in the Home Bank?-A. I cannot get the 
meaning of your question? 

Q. In short, it is this. When the Home Bank failed, did any of the employees 
of the United Grain Growers, Limited, or the Grain Growers, Limited, have any 
money on deposit in the Home Bank anywhere in Canada?-A. I think they 
did. I think some of them had. If you will pardon me a moment, I explained 
the other day that an account was kept in the Home Bank whereby the salaries 
of the employees, or a cons~erable number of the employees, I cannot recall 
how many, were paid through the Home Bank. We had an account there for 
that purpose. The money was deposited to their credit in the Home Bank. The 
reason of that was, that the Home Bank had been the Bank we had done business 
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with,-as I explained the other day in evidence,-up to 1917. Many of our 
staff had their accounts there. It was just across the street from our office. It 
was a convenient place for the members of our staff to do their business. 

Q. And when the failure came they lost considerable of their money I sup­
pose?-A. I don't know what their position was. 

Q. They Jost something. I mean the employees of the United Grain 
Growers lost a lot of money in the failure of the Home Bank by having their 
deposits there.-A. As a matter of fact I think probably the company will reim­
burse them. 

Q. I was coming to that. After the failure of the Home Bank, and the Jos,: 
of the money of the employees of the United Grain Growers Company, Limited, 
who had their funds placed on deposit in the Home Bank by the company of 
which you were President and birector?-A. No, just wait a moment. That 
arrangement wa.,; made as the re,mlt of a consultation with the staff. We don't 
do these things in the arbitrary manner you suggest, Mr. Reid, at all. 

Q. I am not suggesting anything. I am saying that the United Grain 
Growers Company of Canada, being agents of the Home Bank to sell its stock 
and to boost the bank in Western Canada, were naturally doing everything in 
their power to do that, and one of the things was to get the employees-you say, 
after consultation with them-to place their money in the Home Bahk on deposit. 
-A. Oh, no; no. 

Q. Did they place it on deposit there?-A. Let me endeavour to make the 
thing clear. As I recall, not a share of the stock was sold subsequent to 1911 or 
1912 by the Grain Growers Grain Company or any one else in Western Canada. 
That is my recollection. During that period, and up to 1917, while our company 
had its commercial account in the Home Bank, the majority of the staff, the 
employees of the Grain Growers, had their personal accounts in the Home Bank. 
As a matter of fact some two or three or four'years ago, I cannot recall exactly 
when, this arrangement was reached with the employees of the company, whereby 
their salaries would be paid to their accounts in the Home Bank twice monthly 
as their salary cheques came due. My recollection is that arrangements was 
made within the last three or four years. 

Q. And of course that helped to swell the deposit of the Home Bank?-A. 
I don't know. I don't know what these people did with it, whether they took it 
out or left it there, or anything else. I cannot tell you. 

Q. What I say is, that these deposits of the employees of the United Grain 
Growers, Limited, helped to swell the deposits of the Home Bank and made more 
funds available for lending purposes?-A. I cannot say as to that Mr. Reid. 

Q. Did the United Grain Growers Company borrow at all from the Home 
t Bank?-A. As I stated the other day in evidence, we have not borrowed since 

September 1917. 
Q. Have you borrowed personally since September, 1917?-A. I have had 

my personal account in the Home Bank since 1908, as I explained a moment ago. 
Q. And you say that at the time of the crash you had overdrawn your 

account a little?-A. No, I had a note due. The Home Bank held my note for 
money I had borrowed and I had money on deposit in the bank. 

Q. So you came clean out of the Home Bank?-A. I don't hear you. 
Q. I say you came clean out of the Home Bank, without any loss. Now 

when the bank failed and the United Grain Growers Company, Limited, or their 
employees; lost their money as depositors in the Home Bank, did the Unitel-1 
Grain Growers Company, Limited, reimburse them at any time for the amount 
which they had lost'?-A. I think as a matter of as.,istance to our staff, that the 
company did assist them. 

Q. Ytm would know, you were President?-A. I don't know. Our businec::s 
is rather a large one, Mr. Reid, and I am sorry, but I don't know all the details 
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of the business. As a matter of fact I think that the company is proteC'ting 
these members of our staff under an arrangement made; not because we had any 
obligation whatever to do it, but as a matter of a:;-;i-:tan('e to our fitaff. We do 
not want any of the members of our :;taff eng::tgPd in the cumpany's servire, to be 
worried over financial lo:;scs or anything d-:e; it impair" their usefulne-,s a::1 
servants of the company. 

Q. And of course as a re-:ult of the early days, of the sale or urging the sale 
of stoek and dcpo:;;it,, in the Home Bank, you thought there was a f:>ort of moral 
obligation on tlw United Grain Urowers to reimburse them as far a,: po,:sible for 
their lo:-:-es as depositors?-A. ~o, I may tell you frankly that never entered our 
minds at all. 

Q. But you did reimburse them?-A. I think that was donr, but I canno! 
swear absolutely. 

Q. Can you tell us 'the amount?-A. I cannot. 
Q. Wac; it $10,000?-A. No, I cannot tell you. 
Q. You have no idea whatever?-A. I have already told you twice that I 

don't know. What is the u::e of asking me a que<;tion like that? 
Q. Do you :;ign the cheque-, of the United Grain Growers Company, Limited? 

-A. Very rarely. • 
Q. There are other officers delegated to do that?---,A. Half a dozen. 
Q. Just one more question. Vd1en you, were sworn in as a member of the 

Cabinet, you say that was in 1917 in October or NO\·ember?-A. Ortober 1917. 
Q. You were sworn in then, and on January 3rd or around there you 

resigned ac; a Director of the Home Bank. When did you leave the Government, 
what month or year was that?-A. I think on the 6th June, 1919. Or the 4th 
June. 

Q. Nearly a year and a half you were in office?-A. It was early in June 
anyway. 

Q. During the time that you were a member of the Dominion Cabinet, and 
with your full knowledge of the conditions of the Home Bank, did you take any 
::;teps or do anything whatever to right the matters of which you had been com­
plaining some year::; before. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: That is an unfair question. l\Ir. Crerar hac; alrrady said 
he had not any knowledge, he had not been in attendance at meetings. ·why 
say "with your full knowledge"? 

Mr. REID: \Vhy, he was writing; letLer-, all over the place between 1916 und 
1918, suggesting mergers and everything else. I am only asking one question. 

Q. Did you do anything, while you were a member of the Dominion Cabinet, 
between October 1917 and when you re:;:igned in June, 1919, to right thP wrongs 
about which you were complaining for some years previously in connection with 
the Ho~e Bank?-A. What do you mean by "did I do anything?" 

Q. Did you take any steps? You had become a member of the Cabine1 
and were in a position to take active mea-mres to either have an amalgamation 
made of the Home Bank, or to do rnmething to save the depositors and share­
holders and to save the situation generally by real energy and action, better than 
you had ever been in before; did you do anything during that period along those 
lines?-A. Well now if you are through making a f'peerh, Mr. Reid, I will 
answer your question. 

Q. I am trying to elaborate so that you will understand what I am asking, 
and then I ask you: did you take any steps along those lines?-A. If you mean, 
did I take any steps with those who had been a,-;;ociated with me as Directors, 
did I have any communication with anyone outside, I will answer, no, I 1did not. 

Q. Or with the Government ?-A. I refuse to answer. 
Mr. REID: That will do. 

• 
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By Mr. Lee: 
Q. Just one question, Mr. Crerar. I a:;ked you the other day a few ques­

tions as to the stock rnld to Mr. Daly. When the stock of the Grain Growers 
was sold to Mr. Daly, the thousand shares, was there any limitation put upon 
where Mr. Ditly should sell that stock, what portion of Canada ?-A. Not as 
far as my knowledge goes, Mr. Lee, there was not. I may say in further answer 
to that, Mr. Lee, as I explained the other day in evidence, these negotiations 
were carried on by our treasurer, but 1 am very certain there was not. 

By Mr. Symington: 
Q. Mr. Crerar, your company had a Commission Department among it.s 

other department:i in Winnipeg, what is known as a Commission Department? 
-A. Yes. 

Q. And that department of your company sold Home Bank shares and 
other things on commisf'ion?-A. Yes, we had a department for selling our own 
sharp;, at the same time. 

Q. And the co·mpany had many departments in connection with its busi­
ne::38?-A. Yes, probably half a dozen. 

Q. You were not in charge of the Commission Department personally?~ 
A. No. 

His LORDSHIP: I think that will do, Mr. Crerar. 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: :\1y lord, I desir'e, with your permission, to make a 

statement to you with regard to an interview which I gave the press on Tuesday 
of last week; to explain the circumstances to which I shall testify in evidence 
a little later, and to say what was said to your lordship by Mr. Lafleur on 
rf'ceipt of the telegram from me, that in making that statement to the press no 
disrespect wm; implied toward the Commissio:ri. · 

On Tuesday morning of last week in Toronto, I read this in the Globe. I 
will read the heading first:-

,, Records of Bank show fee of $1,500 to Sir Thos. White." 

That is the large heading. The next heading is:-
" Directors' Minute Book discloses interesting entry two days before 

close." 
I 

And the next heading is:-
" Services as Adviser." 
A disclosure of unusual intcre,;;t in connection with the transactions 

occurring during the last days of the Home ~ank of Canada was made 
yesterday, when it was ascertained that Sir Thomas White, former Min­
ist,er of Finance, received a fee .of $1,500 for services rendered as special 
adviser. An int(•re,ting memorandum relating to Sir Thomas's connec­
tion with Home Bank affairs appears in the directors' minute book under 
date of August 15, 1923. It reads as fohow:;: 

" Rcf:olved, the bank do pay Sir Thomas White $1,500 on account 
of his fee:i for services as special adviser in connection with the present 
situation of the bank's affairs." 

This payment was made by cheque, and Sir Thomas cashed it before 
the bank suspended payment at the close of busine:-s on Augu.;.t 17. 

The bank directors carried their case to Ottawa, throwing them-
8clves on the mercy of the Government, and, through the Federal authori- · 
tics, on the Canadian Bankers' As!iociation, on the eve of the collap~e. 
Tlus, no doubt, was the deputation referred to by Premier Mackenzie 
King in the Hlou:;e of Commons. At that time the Premier promised to 
make the details known later. He is expected to testify before the 
McKeown Commission in Ottawa 'to-day. 
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The Globe endeavoured last night to obtain a statement from Sir 
Thomas White regarding the matter. At his home in Queen's Park it 
was stated he had retired early and could not be disturbed. 

Now what I wish to call your lord<5hip's attention to as the principal 
reason for making a statement to the pre~~, is the heading. The Commission 
was sitting, and daily reports of its prorredings were in the prrs::;. Then this 
heading appears in large type:-

" Recorrls of the Bank show Fee of $1,500 to Sir Thos. White." 
And on the bulletin board of a Toronto new"paper, without any explanation 
at all, there appeared the statement:-

" Sir Thoma-; White receives fee of $1,500." 
The innuendo is plain. 

Now I made a statement to the press, which I shall not read, but which I 
shall give in evidence. I may ~ay in extenuation1 of my fault, if it was a fault, 
in making the statement--which, a'l I .-tatrd to your lordship, meant no dis­
respect to this Commission-that the only way that that innuendo could be met 
was by prompt publicity. I wish to thank the newspapers of Canada who gave 
publicity to the statement which I made. 

In my statement I referred to the advice which in August la:ot I had given 
in my capacity as Counsel or Solicitor to the Home Bank. I t-tated that it 
was my intention to apply to the liquidator for his permission to present before 
the Commi-,sion the letter of advice which I had given as legal adviser upon 
that occasion. I applied to Mr. Clark--on and he said he would personally have 
no objection to my giving that letter, and to my presenting that statement in 
evidence to your lordship. I find, however, that I cannot do that, and in order 
to save time I am going to ask your lordship to allow be to submit briefly the 
authorities which. absolutely prevent, and which bar me, as a rule of law, from 
waiving the privilege which belonged to my client and not to myself, and which 
the liquidator, I find, is unable to waive in the place of my client. On account 
of the misstatement which was made, I would like to have this on the record. It 
is very brief, and it will help your lordship in deciding a little later whrther 
the document, which I have here in my pocket, may be produced in evidence 
or not. I may say that all the authorities are in agreement about this, but I 
submit only these citations from Taylor on Evidence, and I know that the rule 
of law, whirh is elementary, is so well known to your lordship, that I mu;;:t 
apologize for making the citation. I refer to:-

" TAYLOR ON EvrnENcE;" 11th Edition; vol. 1, page 618. 
Section 911, h. 
Secondly, as regards professional communication-, the rule is now 

settled that where a barrister or solicitor is profe,:sionally employeq. by a 
client, all communications which pass between t,hem in the cour,,e and 
for the purpose of that employment are so far privileged that the legal 
adviser, when called as a witneb,,, cannot be permitted to di,:close them, 
whethn they be in the form of title deed:5, wills, -documents or other 
papers delivererl or ,:tatements made to him of letters, entries or state­
ments written or made by him in that capacity, and this even though 
third per,;on.5 were pre:-ent. After ,;tating the rule in this general form 
it seems almost needle,:s to add that ra,,es laid before coun;;el on behalf 
of a client, and the opinions of <'ounsel ,thereon, sbnd upon preci,:ely the 
same footing as other professional communications from the client to 
the counsel and solicitor or to either of them or from the coun:-el and 
solicitor or from either of them to the client. The privilege is the privilege 

• 
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of the· client and not of the prof Pssional adviser; the adviser therefore 
is bound to claim the privilege, unle~s the client ha:,; waived it, which it is 
open for him to do. 

912. The rule equally applie'3 though the solicitor be employed in the 
character either of a scrivener to raise money, or a conveyancer to draw 
deeds, or though the conversation relate only to the sale of an estate or 
to the amount of the bidding to be reserved. In fact it extends to all 
communications between a solicitor and client relating to matters, within 
the ordinary :,;cope of a solicitor's duty. 

913. If touching matters that come within the ordinary scope of 
professional employment, legal advisers receive a communication in their 
professional capacity either from a client or on his account and for his 
benefit in the transaction of his busine,;,;, or which amounts to the same 
thing, if they commit to paper in the course of their employment on his 
behalf matters which they know only through their profe::;:;ional relation 
to the client, they are not only justified in withholding such matters but 
bound to withhold them and will not be compelled to disclose the informa­
tion or produce the papers in any court of law or equity either as a party 
or as a witness. 

And at page 65, under section 919. 
It seems to be now settled that in strict law the judge ought not to 

look a1- the writing to see whether it is a document which may be properly 
withheld. The same rule applies where the documents called for are iu 
the hands of solicitors for the trustees of bankrupts. 

923. The rule does not require any regular retainer or any particul:-r 
form of application or engagement or the payment of any fees: It is 
enough if the legal adviser be in any way consulted in his professional 
character. 

927. The protection does not cease with the termination of the suit or 
other litigation or business in which the communications were made. The 
seal of the law, once fixed upon the communications, remains for ever, 
unless removed by the party himself in whose favour it was placed, or per­
haps in the event of his death by his peri::onal representatives, and there-

/ fore if the client becomes a bankrupt his trustee cannot waive the privilege 
without his particular permission. 

I might say that in addition to my own opinion, upon the authority which I 
have quoted, that I have taken the opinion of other Courn,el; and while I am not 
only willing but anxious to waive any privilege that I might myself have I am 
absolutely bound by the law not to waive it. 

Now, with your permission, Sir, I should like to go into the witness box and 
testify as to the circumstances under which I was engaged. 

His LORDSHIP: You may: 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: I have no other evidence to give, but I should say 

further, in fairness, that the ~econd day after, the Globe published in full the 
fitatement which I have given, and that their headings correctly state the situa- · 
tion.. The headings are: 

"Statement issued regarding cheque." 
"Sir Thomas ,vhite explains his businee'3 with Home Bank." 
"His advice was sought." 
Those are the headingjs; with which I am quite content. 
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~ir THO:\iAS \VHITE (Recalled) (Takes the witne::s l'hair): I have been 
sworn before, Mr. Commissioner. 

I re:-igned as Mini:-;ter of Finance on August 1st, 1919, owing to the state of 
my health. I was unable to do anything for a year and in September, 1920 I 
opened an office in Toronto and since that date I have been practising law there. 

After I resigned as l\'.Iinistcr of Finance, I had no communication of any kind 
what::,oever, nor did I transact any busine::,,, with the Home Bank, or on brhalf of 
the Home Bank, or with any of its Directors or officers. As I explained in evi­
dence the other day, I was under the impre:-;::,ion that the Home Bank was going 
on well, under the Presidency of Mr. Daly. 

My summer home is in Lake Rou::;seau, Muskoka, and is about 150 miles 
north of the city of Toronto. I was up there in August of la~t year. That is to 
i-ay, a little over four years after the time when I re:-igncd from the Ministry of 
Finance. I had been in Muskoka since June. On the Sunday preceding the fail­
ure of the Home Bank, I recrived a telegram from Mr. Casey Wood. I have not 
the tekgram here; I think probably it is in Muskoka. He asked me in substance 
to come down to Toronto to advi:;e un an important situation. I did not want 
to come down, so I went over to Port Carling to telephone to find out what it 
was about. He could not very well tell me over the trlephone, but I gathered 
that it waH -,ome trouble with regard to the Home Bank; f'O I came down that 
~unday night arriving in Toronto a little after midnight, I think; and the next 
morning, at my offi<'e in the City of Toronto, I wa,: con,.;ulted by Mr. Wood and 
I think :'.\Ir. Calvert, ,,ith regard to the Home Bank. As I have stated, while I 
t-:hould be vrry glad, personally, to waive any privilrge that attachrs to my adviC'e, 
I am unable to do so. 

I remained as adYisrr during the werk following the Sunday when I came 
down, and I think that I returned either on Friday night or on t--aturday morning. 
I am not sure which but I think on Friday night. 

I received, by agreement, the sum of Sl,500 for my services. That wa-- paid 
to mP by cheque in my name and I clcpo-.ited that cheque t-o my account "·ith the 
Canadian Bank of Commerce I think on August 14th. That would be Tue:sd,1v 
or Wednc,.;day, I am not rnre whi<'h. I think Tue:-day. That cheque wrnt through 
the clearing hou:,;e and was paid in the u:,ual course, so that tlw money ,vm; plaC'cd 
to my account. In other words, I received payment. I imply that thr dwque 
was paid because the amount wa:,, credited fo my book and not charged b;t!'k. 
That is thr .,;tatement. 

His LORDSHIP: Do any of the Counsel desire to ask Sir Thomas any ques­
tions? 

Mr. ::.\IcLArGHLIN: :\fy lord, thi,- is a matter of coursr in which myself and 
As-;01•iate Counsel were acquainted with the fact:: ::,ince our e;1rly invr>-tigation. 

We considered that this was just a matter of Sir Thomas White's pPr~onal 
bu,inf'i-~ and that going into it would not a~~i~t your lordship in any way in 
answering the questions that have been submitted to you. For that rea.::on 
we felt that we had no concrrn with it, and we did not bring it up. \Ve feel the 
samP now and I have no questions to u:;k Sir Thoma,;. 

His LoRDRHIP: I think you took a very proper view of it, Mr. McLaughlin. 
I think that is all, Sir Thomr.s. 

Mr. SYMT::--GTON: I u.nclrrstand, Mr. Commi:::sioner, that that rlo!'es the cu-e 
on thi~ branch: 

While we have gone outside this particular branch, we now have reached 
the sta~e where argument will be presented to your lord-,hip in accorclancr with 
the arrun~ement~ made at t.he last sitting. I under:::bnd the Order to he that 
my frirnds for the depo-.:itors lead. I do not know whether my learned friend 
Mr. Rrid has any intrre,::t in the argument or is going to make an argument 
Perhap:,; he will so state? 

.. 
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Mr. RErn: There may be a short argument on some of the legal a:-pects. 
That is about all. As far as some of the shareholders are concerned. 

~fr. SYMINGTON: Then I prrsume my friend will follow my friends for the 
depositors. Sir ThomaR White will then addre~s the Commis:Sion, and Mr. 
Lafleur and myself will close. 

His LORDSHIP: The order then suggested is that Counsel for the depositors 
address their remarks to me; then Mr. Reid if he thinks it touches on the interest 
of his clients, it is open to him of course to argue; and then Sir Thomas White; 
and then yourself and Mr. Lafleur? 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Yes sir. 
Mr. LEE: We will have the right of reply I suppose in the ordinary course 

of events? 
His LORDSHIP: Y e5, that is one Counsel in reply. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: There is really no reply; unless it is a contest between my 

learned friends and Sir Thomas White. As far as the Counsel for the Com­
mission understand, they do not anticipate that any position they take will be 
contravened in reply; they will endeavour only to place the fact;:; before your 
lordship. 

ARGUMENT 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: My lord, the matters in question have been submitted to 
your lordship in evidence at very considerable length, 'and have been printed, 
in a convenient and available form, and your lordship has giv~n very careful 
attention to the evidence. My view of it will only be as to special matters, 
knowing your lordship will refer to the whole. 

'\This Commission, I think it will be agreed by everyone, is a very important 
Commi::;::;ion. The future poliry of the Government as to legi;,lation and as to 
the adminit->tration of the Bank Act may depend to a considerable extent on your 
lord,,hip's findings. And the security that the public, depositing ~ith banks, 
will have in the future under legislation or a<,lministration, no doubt will be 
largrly affected by your lordship's findings. 1 

So far as our case is concerned, certain que:-tions have been submitted to your 
lordship, and I do not suppose that Counsel, or your lordship, intend to go far 
out,:ide of those questions, and con,:equently I will confine myRclf chiefly to them. 

"\Ve commenre then on January 22nd, 1916, when certain rcpre.::rntations 
were made to the Finance Minister, by three Directors of the Bank. They were 
remarkable in a way. There is no precedent for l'Omplaints from a bank to the 
Finance Minister being made by Directors of the Bank itself. Consequently, they 
were made from the mo5t authoritati~e sources and they deserved the most careful 
and weiirhty ronsideration. They were made to the Finance Minister, the respon­
sible Minister of ~he Crown, the only per;:,on who had any authority to take any 
proceedings irr connection with the administration of the Bank Act; and they were 
made for the purpose of having an independent inve;..tigation; and they were 
made, •as appears by the evidence, not as the re,-ult of any quarrel between the 
Directors, not for any per,-onal reasons, but for the rea::;ons, as the Directors 
stated, that for more than a year and a half they had been diligently endeaYour­
inii; to get ,information fro:in the management of the bank which would ,:atisfy 
them as to the ~ondition of the bank, and that they had not been able to get such 
information, or information of a 1-atisfactory naturre. Such information as they 
had showed that the bank was in a very aoubtful and disturbing condition. 

Now the repre,-cntations made and that were ·:aid before the Minister appear 
in Book Number 1, after the Commi:,~ion and Petition were put in, and appear 
from page 12 to page 75. 



592 ROYAL COMMISSION 

Exhibit 5, page 17, while not the first in order in the book, is really the fl.mt 
in logical order. It shows the capitalization of the bank, who the Directors were, 
and what the Directors had done; that the Eastern Directors met in Toronto 
and the Western Directors met in Winnipeg. I will read a few extracts from 
page 18. 

"Early in the Fall of 1914, suggestions came to the we-;tcrn members 
that the businci::s in the chief Toronto office of the Bank was not in good 
t:ondition, and the we:atcrn members became anxious therefore to have 
the matter enquired into, and this led to action being taken on the lines 
herein indicated. 

The three western dircctors ,wnt to Toronto in "November, 1914, with 
the special view of making particular enquiries as to the position of the 
chief Toront-0 branch, and with a view to making a complaint to some 
extmt as to the amount ·of money withdrawn from the "\Vest for making 
loans in the Ea,;t. · · 

We rnlled on the General Manager perf-onally in the first place, and 
after discm,sing matkrs gmerally, we asked him t-0 let us have a li:;t of 
all loans in the Toronto office exceeding $25,000. He suggested a private 
meeting with our,;elve::l to give us the information, it being unnecessary, 
a,, he sugge:-:ted, to have the eastern directors at the meeting, as they were 
familiar with the loans. To this we demurred, and intimated that we 
wished t.he information given at a full meeting, which was agreed to, and 
the meeting was thereupon held on the following day and c:ontinued next 
three days. 

Certain information was given at that meeting, with which, however, 
the western members of the Board were not by any means satisfied, as is 
shown by a letter of 17th February, 1915, addressed by the we:-:tern mem­
bers to l\Ir. A. C. Macdonell, that letter being sent to him particul!rly 
because he was a member of the legal profe:-sion, and we relied upon him 
to be of assistance to us in getting the fullest information possible. 

At the November meetings we made enquiry as to whether any recent 
inspection had been made of the Toronto office, and were told by Col. 
J\fa~on that it had not been deemed necessary to have it inspe1·tcd beeause 
the business of that branch came weekly before the Board .. We protested 
against the failure to have a regular inspection; and at a subsequent meet­
ing an inspection was directed to be made by Mr. Adair, he Bank's Super­
visor. We specially urged that it :,;hould be ready for submission before 
the annual meeting to be held late in .June. It turned out, however that the 
inspection report was not ready when the annual meeting was held on 29th 
June, but we did not know of its not being completed until we came to the 
meeting. It was then di:-;rlosed that the annual report had already been 
forwarded to Ottawa without our knowing anything of it:; contents. 

Mr. Gooderham, a member of the Board, had during; the summer of 
1915, pre;entcd his resignation from the Board, but had been prevailed on 
to retain his seat temporarly, at all event-;. 

Early in January, 1916, a letter, dated 31st Dec., 1915, copy of w~ich is 
attached, was received from the General Manager, announcinl! the re:,;igna­
tion of Mr. l\1c~aught as a director, and the election of Mr. W. R. Haney 
in his place. "\Ve a~-;ume that this meeting was held on the usual WPPkly 
meeting day, but we had no notice of it. Mr. Macdonell too, was absent 
from the Province, as we understand, and prec;umably the only directors 
present brsides the General Manager would be Messrs. Flynn and Gooder­
ham. We replied to the General Manager's letter as per the attached 
copy. 

On or about the 17th inst., we received from the General Manager a 
letter ( copy attached in the Barnard memo) announcing the resignation of 
t 
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Mr. Gooderham and the election of ~1r. C. A. Barnard in his place. We 
knew nothing of this meeting, and we understand Mr. Macdonell was _,till 
absent from the Province .. " 

This Exhibit gives a general idea of their troubles and fears, and a general 
idea of the way in which the bank was being conducted. New Directors were 
appointed at meetings of which the Western Directors had no notice. They 
were appointed evidently by the General Manager himself. As further stated 
in the evidenee, Mr. A. C. Macdonell was very :,,eldom at Directors' meetings, 
being largely away in connedion with his public duties. Mr. Flynn was an 
old man who took no intere:;t in the affairs of the bank. Mr. McNaught and 
Mr. Gooderham were resigning. Con'iequently, Mr. Haney and Mr. Barnard 
appear to have been the selertion of General Mason, the President and General 
Manager, himself, we may say. 

Along with this there is also two other memoranda, Exhibit 2, referring to 
the Prudential Trust loan, which we have discussed very fully and which I 
will refer to a little bit later on. And Exhibit 3, referring to the Barnard loan . 
The Barnard loan was never again referred to in the correspondence of Sir 
Thomas White, although referred to by Mr. Fisher several times. Sir Thomas 
seems to have entirely forgotten that loan. Exhibit 6, at page 19, speaks of a 
so-called settlement with Barnard. That I will refer to later on. With this 
memorandum were included the correspondence which the Directors had with 
the General l\1anager in connection with the difficulties extending over a year 
and a half. 

Exhibit No. 7 is a letter from T. A. Crerar to James Mason, speaking about 
the inspection of the Toronto office. He says: 

f'The inspection of the Toronto office in June last disclosed that 
Barnard's debt wa-, then $394,000, and that there were 2,622 shares of the 
Bank's stock, held in the names of Barnard and Pellatt but in trust. The 
report did not show that any security was held in respect of the debt, 
but possibly it was meant to be suggested that these shares might be 
regarded as practically a security through the Bank having a lien on 
them. Unfortunately, neither the information furnished by the books, 
nor apparently what the Inspector was able to procure, disclosed how 
far the right of lien, if it existed at all, would be affected by the un­
stated trust-the report showing that no trust deed was held. 

Without adding anything for interest this Barnard debt then 
amounted in June, 1915, to . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $394,000 

And a fresh advance ha;i now lbeen made to him, as you say, of 15,000 

Making his total indebtedness apart from interest . . . . . . $409,000 
You s-.1y that the debt has now been written, down to the 

par value of thP shares, and a._ssumed, a;i we understand 
it, by the Fidelity Trust Company, viz. . . ~. . . . . . . $262,200.00 

Then Barnard has been allowed for commiB."ion . . . . 91,539.32 
And there has been writ:en off, as you say . . . . . . . . . . . . 57,43023 

$411,169.55" 

That Exhibit goes pretty fully into the question of the Barnard loan. 
Exhibit 8 is a reply from ::\1ason to Crerar, which does not give any further 

light on the subject. And E,xhibit 9 is a letter from Mr. Crerar to Mr. Mason 
with reference to th~ matters above stated. 

Then we come to Exhibit 10 at page 24. This is a letter to A. C. Mac­
donell, K.C., M.P., and I will read a few clauses from that. 

His LoRnsltIP: Mr. McLaughlin, this is the first, as I remember, in point 
of date that has been put in, that is to say, early in the year 1915, the 17th of 
February. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: Yes, my lord, that is the earliest in point of date. 
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Hi,, LORDSHIP: That is the first note of alarm that was sounded publicly, 
if not publicly at least among themselves. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: This was among themselves. Of coun-e, this wa-< sub-
mited to the Minister. · 

His LoRD>'HIP: Well, this is a letter to Mr. l\Iacdonell. 
l\Ir. McLAUGHLIN: My lord, of course it is dear all of these letters were 

submitted, they all come from Mr. Roberts' file. 
Hi,:; LORDSHIP: Yes. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: They were submitted with Mr. Fisher's memoranda. 
His LORDSHIP: Yes, but the submi:::sion to the Minister did not tttke place 

till ::,ome time afterwards. 
Mr. l\lcL.ffGHLIN: January 22nd, 1916. 
His LORDSHIP: You see, it is almost a year after this letter w·as written 

before it came to the eye of the Minister. 
:\fr. McLArGHLIN: Yes. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: This is the first in point of date of any of the written 

documents. 
Hi,:; LORDSHIP: I think so. 
Mr. McLArGHLIN,: Well, this letter is important, for it is the first com­

plaint, and it sets forth what the Directors were complaining of at that time. 
Ili::i LORDSHIP: Yes, not only that but it reveals the fact that they them­

selns had, for i:;ome time previom,, been carrying the burden of an apprchen:::ion 
that there was something wrong. 

::\Ir. McLA'CGHLIN: Yes. Leaving out the formal matters, it says: 
"You will remember that certain st atPments were submittl-d from 

the General Manager at that meeting, showing extremrly heavy advance,; 
from the Toronto office to certain cu::itomers of the Bank, and the way 
in which tlie information wn'3 furni::,hed was extremely un~ati:,.factory. 
For instance, in one case, the indebtednes,; of a certain cu,::tomer was 
:,t,ated on the fin,t day of the meeting- as bl·ing $1,100,000 ;" 

I understand that this is the Pellatt acrount, from reading the whole thing. 
"and the very next day of our adjourned meeting we were told a 

mi:-take had been made, and that his actual inclebtednes-; wa-i $1,500,000, 
while on the next following day, to which the meetin!!; was again ad­
journed, it was di::;dosed that the indebtednc~s actually reached 81,780,000 

" 
Hi,-: LORD::lHIP: Yes. You see, they were expre 0 sing them,,clves a-, very 

apprrhcn:;ive about tliis, and you will remPmber that this letter wa::; writtl'n to 
-:\Ir. Macdonell, and, wi~hout giving the reasons, they wrote to him because he 
wa-; a lawyer and public man, and being sensitive to anything improper being 
done, and l\Tr. Macdonell rathC'r resented being pi<'ked out to have the burden 
pl::ic·c,cl on his shouldero,, and then, in reply to that, these same gentlemen say 
tliat t1'.e:v hau, 2s a matter of fact, con,mlted in Winnipeg with a view of laying 
the whole thing at that time before the Minister, but that he, their counsel, 
advi;,:ed that it be laid before i:,ome Eastern member of the Dirertorate in whom 
th<'y bad confidC'nce, so you &C'e away back there, a y<'ar before it came to the 
1lin~4er's notice. these \\\,stern Directors were carrying the burden of a very 
heavy apprehension that :;omething was wrong. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: A gr<'at anxiety. '\Veil, :vour lordship hac:; rrad tho,-e 
exhibits so thoroughly that it would be a waste of time to read them over again. 

His LORDSHIP: I asked you at the very start to take it for granted that I 
do not know anything about it at all, and I am not going to curtail your reading 
of it. 

" 
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l\Ir. McLAUGHLIN: \Vhat I have read, my lord, shows that they could not 
get truthful information. 

His LORDSHIP: Oh, no, I am not seeking to curtail your remarks at all. 
You may take a different view of something that has not occured to my mind 
in the way that you view it yourself. I want your views thoroughly. 

:\Ir. McLA1.:GHLIN: I feel the respon:iibility of the ca1:-e very much, it-, 
importance, a matter of ,life and death to so many people, I might say. 

His LORDSHIP: Exactly, and I will further say to you, Mr. McLaughlin, 
and what I say to you I 1:-ay to all the counsel, that I am not the slightest bit 
impatient over any length of time that you may feel it necessary to take in 
ordpr to place your view!'l fully before me. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: We appreciate your exceeding courtesy all the way 
through, your lordship. It is indeed a delight and a pleasure to present a case 
to you. 

His LORDSHIP: Now, you were about to comment on that letter, Mr. Mc­
Laughlin . 

:\Ir. McLA1.:GHLIN: I would say that that first clause shows that they could 
not get truthful information, and when you find that the management cannot 
be relied upon it is an exceedingly serious matter. 

As I mentioned in Sir Thomas White's examination, and he agreed with me 
fully, the sine qua non of any financial institution was the human element. 

His LORDSHIP: 'Surely. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: And you cannot possibly make anything 1:-ucceed with­

out a rea::,onable amount of honesty, integrity, faitl1fulness and fidelity. These 
!:ire the rocks on which Sir Thomas White's house ought to have been built instead 
0f the quickE:and which he mentioned in his evidence. 

The letter proceeds: 
"Then in the case of the General Manager himself, you will remember 

he represented to us, in the first instance, that his own indebtednes5 was 
$35,000, while afterwards it was dii:;closed that a mistake had been made, 
and that the indebtedne:,,.,; was actually $76,000." 

Now, these are all items which are, after all, of a serious nature. $76,000 
would not break a bank, but here was $76,000 to the General Manager without 
any security whatsoever except liens on a few shares of the bank, and tho1:-e 
shares were intrinsically worth absolutely nothing at this time, and that is a 
thing for a minister, if he had had time and opportunity, to consider. 

Then the letter continue,,: 
"A somewhat like situation was disclosed in the case of some other 

cu9tomers. 
Then I must recall to your attention that in the case of a certain 

Trust Corporation, to which the Bank had made advances, that Corpora­
tion, it was stated, had deposited with the Bank a considerable amount 
of trust funds which were in the hands of the Corporation, and which 
were represented by the General Manager to be held by the Bank as 
security for the advances so made. Later on, it turned out, that a very 
con,:iderable portion of the trust funds had been already withdrawn, and 
one could not under~tand, indeed, how it was that such trust funds could 
ever be regarded af; security to the Bank for advances to a Trust Com. 
pany." 

Now, there was a false representation made by the Manager to his 
Directors, that this $500,000 advance was secured in the first place by a 
deposit of $500,000 of trust funds which, as stated in the documeht submitted 
to the Minister, were trust funds belonging to the Province of New Brunswick. 
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Sir Thomas say,;; that that did not create any suspicion in his mind. The 

~ole a~d o!llY reason why it would not create a suspicion in his mind must be 

that his mmd was full of other matters at the time so much i::o that he did not 

give it any consideration whatever. ' 

"You will remember that at the meeting of 30th December, at which 

two of the W e,:tern members were present, the following resolution wa;:; sub­

mitted by myself and disCU>''led fully, every member, as I understood 

expressing full approval of its terms. The resolution was in the words 

following: ' 
Owing to the General Manager's ill health, until further in­

structed by this Board the Assistant General Manager and MPsi:,rs, 

Adair and Dodds be appointed a committee to carry on the affairs 

of the Bank, and that this committee will specially pass upon all 

credits, and make every effort possible to collect all over-due loans 

and bring in as early as pofsible a statement showing th~ present 

position of the Bank and their recommendation as to the best course 

to pursue in the future. 
At that time the Geyeral Manager was out of the Dominion on a 

trip for his health-at Old Point Comfort if I remember aright-and it 

happened that while the meeting was in session a telegram had bPen 

received from him by the Assistant Manager, asking that no committee 

be appointed until his return, which, as stated in the wire, wa:; to be 

immediately. This telegram was read to the meeting by the A:"sistant 

General Manager after the discussion on the re~olution mentioned but 

before it was submitted to vote." 

His LonnsHIP: May I ask, Mr. McLaughlin, with reference to Mr. Dodds. 

He seems to have dropped out. Later on, in an Exhibit numbered 34, Mr. 

Adair sePms to have made a report under date of July 21st, 1915, page 58, but 

Mr. Dodds does not appear. 

Mr. McLAVGHLIN: We have lost track of him. I do not know what be­

came of him. 
His LORDSHIP: I cannot find him, and I thought, perhaps, you could locate 

him for me. He seems to have wandered off somewhere and never to have 

been located. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: I would like to call your lordship's attention to page 

14, the note at the end of Mr. Fisher's Exhibit No. 2, which shows a very 

very serious matter: 
"On the 14th instant, Mr. Adair wired us from Toronto that Mr. 

Kennedy, the assi'ltant manager of the Toronto office, had been suspended 

by the general manager for taking a stand with which he (Adair) was 

in sympathy. And we had a further wire from Adair, intimating that 

Mr. Kennedy had apparently declined to sign the monthly statement, 

which Mr. Cooper Mason the assistant general manager of the bank, 

and manger of the Toronto office, had also dee lined to sign. It occurs 

to us-but this is only a gues-,-that they declined to sign the monthly 

return because it did not disclrn,e the facts in connection with this Pru­

dential loan." 
That was a very serious statement too, when officers of the bank were 

coerced into signing a statement which they did not believe to be true. 

His LoRD8HIP: You see, that was six months later, that was in January, 

1916, and that was a confidential memo for the Minister of Finance. It had 

got to him them. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: Yes, that was part of Mr. Fisher's memoranda, but I 

had gone over that and omitted stating it through lapse of memory, and I am 

referring to it now. 

• 
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"Under the rircumstance-;, the Board conrluded not to pac:c; the 
resolution at the time, and indcPd, the resolution itself was expressly 
worded in term;; that did not on the face of them cast any reflection on 
the General Manager. This was thought advisable, although it was 
well under;;tood that his action in connection with some of the Bank's 
affairs could not be at all approved, 

It happened that the western dirertors were obliged to leave for 
the West thut night, but before leaving the meeting they rereived 
the positive assurance of the other memberi" that at the very first meeting 
after the General Manager returned action would be taken on the 
lines of the said resolution. Indeed, it wa" well understood that with 
a view to carrying out this purpose it would be arranged that the General 
Manager would take leave of absence for a time in order that the pro­
posed committee would, independently of him, look into the affairs of the 
Bank under the direction of the Board. After our return to Winnipeg, 
and no advice being received from Toronto showing such a1tion to have been 
taken, I wrote to the head office for information and rercived copy of 
another resolution that had been passed by the Board at a later date.'' 

which did not comply with the previous one, and with which these Western 
Directors were very much dissatisfied. 

In reply to that, there is Exhibit 11, by Mr. Macdonell to Mr. Pen~se, 
page '26, to which your lordship referred and which I need not comment upon. 

And then there is Exhibit No. 12, page 28, in which the Directors applied 
to Mr. Macdonell and sbte how that they had considered the question of 
submitting the matter to the Minister of Finance but had been advised by 
counsel to submit it to the Eastern Directors in the first instance. 

So that, at that time, these Directors were feeling the situation to be of a 
very serious character: 

Then we have Exhibit 13, at page 29. This is some months later, letter 
of June 14th: 

"Shortly after you left Toronto Mr. Gooderham sent me a letter 
tendering his resignation as a Director, but on Mr. Flynn and myself 
seeing him, he decided to let the matter of his resignation stand over 
until the Annual Meeting. We were in hopes that he might change his 
mind, but on Friday last he called to say that he had sold his stock 
and it is now transferred, so that he has ceased to be Director." 

I understand Mr. Gooderham's stock was transferred to his gardener where 
it stands still. 

"I was greatly surpri5ed at this action on the part of Mr. Gooder­
ham, as I considered his promise would have been kept. The real rea::;on, 
I think, for Mr. Gooderham's action-and so he stated-was that he 
felt he had not been taken sufficiently into the confidence of the other 
Directors, and also that the attitude of the Directors had been changed 
when it was believed we were so likely to get that large deposit in con­
nection with the Army Contract." 

Now, that letter was in June, 1915, and what became of that Directorate 
until some months afterwards when another Dire'ctor was elected in Mr. Gooder­
ham's place, we do not know. 

His LORDSHIP: Mr. Barnard took his place eventually, did 'he not? 
Mr. SYMINGTON: I think the evidence is that Mr. Gooderham did withdraw 

his resignation and continued to act up until the following September when Mr. 
Haney took his place. 
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Mr. McLAl:GHLIN: I do not know how he continued to act without owning 

any ;;tuck. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: I think he got some :;tork bark, if I remember correctly. 

:'.\Ir. Lrn: Pardon my interrupting you, Mr. McLaughlin. If your lordi-hip 

would like a statement put in of when the Directors were elected, and when they 

cea:;:ed to be Directors, I will be very glad to put it in. 

His LORDSHIP: Do, please, because sometime:; one wants to know tho~e 

things without looking up two or three hundred pages to find out. 

Mr. :.'.\1c LA1,GHLIN: Exhibit 14, page 30, letter from the Western Director::; 

to the Prc,;:
1
ident, part of the letter being: . 

".Meantime, we regard it a:; particularly urgent that immediate :;t~ps 

be taken by the Executive to have a complete revaluation made on a 

:;trictly conservative basi::i of the Bank's a:-set3, rn that the result may be 

placed before' the Board at that meeting. We trust that this can be 

arranged. The Executive will, of cour:;e, ,-re that qualified men will be 

appointed to make the valuation, and we venture to suggest on our part 

the names of Messr,-. Bird and Adair." 

His LoRD6HIP: Going back to that for just a minute, you will notice by 

Exhibit 32, of January 12, 1916, that Mr. l\la"on '-ays to Mr. Crerar: 

":'.\fr. F. G. GooLlerham trndcrcd his resignation as a Director of the 

Bank, and at the regular meeting to-day of the Board, hi~ resigna­

tion wa-; arceptcd and Mr. Charle::; A. Barnard, K.C., of Montreal, elcl"trd 
a Director to fill the varnnry thu,- created." 

:'.\'Ir. McLArGHLIN: Yes, I see. 

His LORDSHIP: I thought Barnard sur<·ecded him. 

Mr. :.'.\kLA-CGHLIN: Ye-,. Now, Exhibit 14, at the end of it: 

"It occurs to u:i, indeed, that it may be necr,,;~ary to con~ider seriom,ly 

-as suggested by us indeed as long ago as last February-the question 

of placing the matter before the authorities of the Finance D
1

cpartment at 

Ottawa." 

His LORDSHIP: Yes. You see, that is nine months after they fir,:t ~ounded 

the alaTiljl. 
Mr. McLArnHLIN: Yes, that is November; 1915. 

Then we have Exhibit No. 15, a further letter from l\Ir. Pers:=:e to the 

General Managrr. There is a sugge:::tion made there that the Western Dirertors 

attend the meetings at Toronto. 
"'Ve are a::ssuming that the sugge--tion is made at thi:i time beC'ausc 

of the unsati-:ifadory conditions di,.:rlo:,;ed during the past year in re,pe<·t 

of some of the larger accounts carried in the Toronto offire, and bcl'au,;e, 

perhaps, of the repre~entations we have felt it our duty to makP to your­

self and our Eastern colleagues on the suhjert of the,:e areounts. ,ve 

think it well, therefore, to pre-;ent to you ~omewhat fully the Yiews that 

occur to us in consiuering this propo--al." 

They go on to i-how the great difficulty there would be in requiring a 

man to go to Toronto every two weeks, and then on the next p:igr, 32: 
0

" You will ali-o recall that at one of the Novrmbrr meeting~ we 

a!'kcd for the last report on the im:pection of the Toronto office, when, 

to our utter surprise it was made known that it had not been inspected 

at all in the near paf't. 
" Against such a condition we earne~tly protested and. urged that 

Messrs, Bird and Adair should be at once instructed to make a full 

inspection-" 
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A little furthrr down: 
"It is painful for us to my --o, but we feel that the conduct of thr 

Bank's business has been too murh guided by one man rule. \Ve are, in 
fact, given to understand that large advance,- have been sometime,; made 
without full information being given to the Board, and, in fact/ wifoout 
the Board's formal "anetion. So far as we are roncerned, we are bound 
to protest again-,t surh practice. We will be disposed at every meeting at 
which we attent to pre:-is for any and every change in the conduct of the 
Bank's buc:iness that may appear advisable. We wish our colleagurs in tlw 
E;.1-,t to know that this will be our attitude, and we hope to have a full and 
frank di-,rus;oi'on of the whole situation at the propo:-rd mel'ting-'' 

Exhibit 16 gives Mr. MeXaught':-; resignation and Mr. Haney's election 
to the Directorate. 

His LonosIIIP: Yes, Mr. Haney took Mr. ~1cN aught's place, Barnard 
taking Mr. Gooderham's place. 

Mr. -:\IcLAUGHLIN: All of this :;:hows that the Directors in the East who 
were taking anything like an active part in the management were resigning, 
getting out. 

Exhibit 19, page 35, refer,- to the Prudential Trust Company lo,m and the 
serious part of this special communication is: 

"What is of more serious consequence, grave doubts are arising as 
to the financial ability of the Trust Company. It is represented from 
sources which cannot be ignored that the Company have their funds 
pretty well locked up and it now -:ieems'quite possible that we may be 
obliged to rely upon the security to a more or less extent." 

This is by the General ~1anager to Crerar: 
" Thi,:: security is a Street Railway in Algiers, which is a portio.n 

of the City of New Orlean:<-its value has been e:;timated variously 
from $500,000 to $1,000,000. There is a Mortgage Deed on the property, 
hold by one ' Carroll,' amounting to $180,000. This mortgage fall~ due 
on the first of Deeember prox., and we learn that Cari;oll is preparing 
to take :etep,; to forrclo~e unle~,; the full amount of his claim is met at 
maturity. In addition, there are other debts, amounting approximately 
to $50,000, but these need not be immediately considered." 

Exhibit 22 is a letter from the General Manager, Mason, to Crcrar, referring 
to the Prudential Tru-,t Company mortgage, and saying that sale proceedings 
were bcin!J: contrmplated by the prior encumbrancrs in New Orleans. 

t Exhibit 23, page 39, is the reply to that, in which they go, very fully, into 
thr 111i:-:repre~1;ntations that have been made to them in c9nnertion with the 
PrudPntial loan. 

• Then we come to Exhibit 24, further romplaints about the Prudential 
loan. There is quite a long memorandum attached to that, showing the mis­
representations made to them from time to time. 

Exhibit 29, pages 48 and 49, reading at page 49 with reference to ,tbe 
Prudential loan: 

" Mr. Lash, while advising that the Bank should not alone pay off 
the Carroll loan, and otherwise look after the Algiers situation, thought 
that the delay obtainrd and arranged for should be w;ed to bring pres,;ure 
to bear upon the Prudential Company, and clear up the situation 'as to 
the attitude of that Company." • 

Then he continues: 
'' He thought abo tlmt if a question should arise ,as to the Home 

Bank sharing with the Prudential Company on proper terms in making 
79137-3 
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thr suggested :uh·amrs, in connrrtion with the Algiers situation, the 
matter might hr further ron:::idered; in other words, he did not, in the 
meantime, expre,:,; a definite view again-,t the advi:::ability of the Bank 
so joining, having regard to the whole situation. He was also of opinion 
that the Bank had no right, on the fadR a~ stated to him by Mr. Anglin, 
to retain the $300,000 depo:-it, pending repayment of $500,000 :New 
Orleans invc:,tment." 

Exhibit 30 is a very long letter by the W c;:;tern Directors, refrrring largely 
to the Prudential mattrr. 

Exhibit 31 is a letter to ~'Ir. Crernr by the General Manager, General 
Ma,-on, in which he says, among other things: 

"Referring fir~t to your favour of the 10th in;.;t., tbc tot.:.11 amount 
of i,he indchtcLlnr;.;s shown on the hooks of Toronto office as due bv the 
Prudential Trust Co., Ltd., is $695,000, principal, plus arrears o·f in­
terc,-t-this include,; a Depn~it _Rerript of $200,000, i~.•ued in ~lay, 1911, 
in favour of the Ontario Government and lo,tged with the Ontario Gov­
ernment by the Prudential Tru,c:t Company as ,-:erurity for the tram-­
action of bu--inc""' by the Tru,-:t Company in the Provinei, of Unbrio­
it has no rnnnertion whatever with the New Orlcan'<, Southern & Grand 
Isle Railway." 

So far a:,; that $200,000 is c·0nr(•rnr!l the bank :::eems to have had no 
:-:eeurity at all except the security of the Tru,-:t Company. 

It goes on at page 54 to say: 
" There is a prior underlying bond i-;sue of ~512,500, which, it is 

said, has no legal claim on anything but the rolling ;:tock, plant, Pte., 
of the 1"\team Road, but rn,t on the stock of the Algiers ~trcet Railway 
Company, held by the United States ~fortgage & Tru--t Company-This 
seeurity being solely for the bond i,-:~ue of Sl,025,000." 

Hi,-: Lo1msmp: Now, just while you are un that and brc,akin~ in for a 
moment, in :\Ir. Clarkson's evidence he, without making a definite :-,tatement 
about it, ratLer suggc,tcd t!rnt tlHy were going to pull out of that ~ew Orleans 
bu--ine~, without much lo~~- Hi,; evidull'L suggested that, did it not? 

-:\fr. McLALGHLIN: He doe,; not knmv, but the hi-,tory of the matter is thi-;, 
which Mr. Clarbon states in his evidenec-

His LoRDf'.HIP: The rea-,on I am mrntioning it is thi:::, that Mr. Clarhon 
put.:; it down at $700,000, or t.hPreabout:-:; he puts that down in his statement 
of a,,-:d, and liabilitie,;; of the bank, Exhibit ~o. 131. ·well, you :-ce, if the 
bank make:-: good on that, or anywhere near it, it throw,; Jight on the query 
that I raised a while ago as to the amount which would be involved in recoup­
ing the depositors. 

I um inclined to think, Mr. McLaughlin, that those who have cntru~ted 
this work to us will expect us to advise them, perhaps fairly definitrly, as to 
what commitment it would mean on their part. 

-:\Ir. McLAl'GHLIN: Yes. \Ve have had, of !'oUr>-c, difficultirf' in grt,ting 
Jc tails. You renwrnber Mr. Clark:oon\; evidence where he said he docs not want 
to ;;ay the lo;;~ it" guing to be so mu!'h whrre he is trying to make collrction of a 
claim, but he ;;t.:itrd that the lo:-:, WQuld be nine and a ha'.f million over and ahow 
tl1c ('apital. 

Mr. BROWNING: I am ;:;omewhat familiar with the New Orleans situation, 
my lord, and l\lr. Clarhon's answer is perfectly rnrrcct. There are surround­
ing eircum4ance;; legally that make it impos,:iblc for him to say what amount, 
if any, will be reahzed upon the a~:;et:; there. 

f 
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His LORDSHIP: I am addre:;.-ing mysrlf to eounscl gcnrrally. Dors that carry with it the conclusion that it would be imposbible for this Commission to 
advise as to what the commitment would be to help the depositors out? 

Mr. BROWNING: I think so. It is impossible to say what "·ill be realized on the B.C. timber limit':!, for instance, and I t1ink that that applies in con­
nection with the New Orleans situation. 

Mr. LFE: It docs not ma~e it impossible for your lordship, if your lor<bhip 
sees fit, to make a finding that the Government should be advisfd to take this bank over and allow the salvage to go bark to tl1e Government. 

His LORDSHIP: I would not think the Government would consider that, 
would they, Mr. Symington? 

Mr. 8.Y~HNGTON: Do not let us a;;':!ume any dcci':!ion on your lordship's part in that way. I think the correct statemeni,, in answer to your question, 
is that nobody can statr, enn approximately, what may or may not be the re:,ult, at ka::'t :,o I will argue to your lordship, as far a~ I have b1•en able to size up the evidence. It may be bcrau:-e :'.\Ir. Clark:-(ln from the idea of not injur­
ing himself in the liquidation does not want to , ay, but certainly on the evi­
dern·n before us nobody cctn °'ay, in my estimatior, what the lo::;s will be. 

His LORDSHIP: Well, I think that too. That is the ronclusion I came to 
in looking over the evidenre, but being anxious to put all the information before tho.,;e who have a~h.ed for it, and for fear that the 'depositors might, perhaps, be ddcrred, at any rate in their argument, I am directing the at.tcntiun of r·ounsel to 't!rnt phase of it, ·rn t-hat if it is po,::-ible for them to put me in a po,-ition to 
!>ay, well, it will require so rnurh, it would help ti.em if I wa-; able to do it. I 
would not think, Mr. Lee, that it would be probable that the idea of recompen­sing the depo:,;itors by taking o\'er the wreck would rerommrnd ihelf, I don't 
think it would. 

Mr. McLACGHLIN: That 1s, of coun;e, what we hope the Government, will 
do. 

Hi" LORD6HIP: Well, it may. I have no rig;ht to :-:tty it won't. 
::\Ir. ~IrLA"FGHLIN: It might in the long run be the best. We will take that biggest loan which we have, four and a half millions on the B.C. timber. Mr. 

Clarbon ':lays there will be two and a half milliom- of a loss there anyway. If the Government were to take that over, in ten or fiftel·n years it might be worth a good deal of money. 
Hi-1 LORDSHIP: You know more about the CIQvernment than I do. I ,live a 

long cl' i-Lmce away, but I really want you to put your case in the stronge;,t light you ran for the depo,,itors, that is all. 
~Ir. McLArGHLIN: Thank you, my lord, and tLut, of c-ourse, j._ the way we feel, 9ut we are hampered by the circum::-.tarn•ps of the ('a:-:c. I have gone over thi;; with Mr. Clarkson, and, as he says in his eYidence, he has got a rPrtain claim, for instance, take the Pellatt claim. He says he wants to realize every 

dol':.ir he can on it, but there is a certain legal qurstion, and if it is deci(ij'd again4 him the lo:-s will be very very large. If it is derided the other way it won't be quite so largr. Now, he says, he cannot, in the intPrrst:,; of the realiza­tion, make tliat publir at the pm,cnt time. 
His LonD.'iHIP: You will have to deal with the faets as they are. 
Mr. :\1cLA1.,GHLIN: Yes, we will have to do the be,-t we can with the fact;; 

as they are, and what we are all anxious about is not to do anything that would have a tendency to injure the realization of every dollar that can be realized out of the estate. 
Referring to the Prudential Trust matter again, you see the situation of that is that there was orginally a, loan of $500,000 made, on which the Pro-
79137-3½ 



602 ROYAL C'U.\!Ml,"f::il01V 

vince of New Brun:-wi{\k was suppo,;ed to be Ff;rurity to some extent and which 

wa:; rlearly fraudulent on its farr. That loan had increased with arcruded 

intPrrst to something about $695,000. Just how the deposit with the Ontario 

Government workr, into it I do not know but it hail increaf:ed anyway. Salee; 

proceedingH were taken, the steam railroad bonds wrre no good, thr prior bond 

issue would not realize more than 50 r<'ntR on the dollar. The Algiers road, 

the security of which wa-- the deposit of the stock with thr U.S. Trust Company 

was subjrrt to a preYious bond mortgage of $300,000 and to unsecured liabil­

ities of ~50,000 or $60,000. ~254,000 of previous bonds had been pledged to 

Carroll for $180,000 Carroll took rnme proceedings and a Receiver was 

appointrJ, the Algiers road wa"l sold' and bought in by Carroll from the pre­

vious encumbrancer. At that moment all the security for the Prudential Trust 

Company loun was gone except the covenant of the company itself; then the 

bank made a further inve,;tment through Herdman & Company of Montreal 

of $235,000 buying the Ale;i<'r:- road from Carroll. · 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Was not that all on the pnrt of the bank, the Caroll pur­

chase was really done for the bank, and was arranged before the foreclo-,ure? 

Mr. :'.\fcLAuGHLIN: I do not think so. 

::\Ir. SYMINGTON: I gathered that impreRt-ion, I would like to know if you 

can point to any evidence. 
:\1r. l\foLAcGHLIN: The Prudential Trust Company took no part in that 

advance and could not a:i,:mme any liability. So if the bank gained or lost on 

the sub,-rquent investment of $235,000 it was no concern of the Prudential; if 

they marlc money on it that did not dimini-:h the liability of the Trust Company 

in any way, if they lost money on the subsequent investment it did not in­

crease the liability of the Trust Company. That is how in rendering a state­

ment to Sir Henry Drayton they professed that the New Orleans indebtedness 

had been to Home extent reduced. They did not give him any information about 

the $235,000 which with interc;;t and costs was charged in their book~ to Herd­

man & Company. I undcr:;tand the total at the present time of both claims 

against the :Sew Orleans situation in ,-omething over $1,100,000. 

His LORDSHIP: Yes, _$1,143,000. I have never yet itemized that amount, 

I was waiting for you gentlemen to do that for me if it is nece,:sary. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: That amount is made up of the original $695,000 

mentioncJ in the exhibits I referred to and $235,000 additional whi('h wa,; paid 

for the Algiers road. . 
Hi,; LORDSHIP: That i:'l $930,000. 

Mr. McLAUGHLI!\: And the ac<-ruPd intere:;t and costs make the total. • 

It has heen runnin'g since 1917 anyway, about six years at the time of the 

liquidation. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: I think your lordship will find it on page 194, exhibit 

No. 107, the position as it was in 1918, and sinre then it is only a question of 

interest. 
' His LoRnF-HIP: They add the Herdman item to the New Orleans indebted­

ness? 
Mr. SYMINGTON: They bring the Prudential up to :Novembei: 15th, 1918, 

and then add Herdman $268,318, making $933,000. 

His LORDSHIP: What did they get for that Herdman advance? 

Mr. SYMINGTON: They got control of this Algiers Railway as I understand, 

which it is now suggested, may save the account. As I understand, it is 

contended by Mr. :'.\il'Laughlin and his friends that the old line being ~one, 

their original advan('P to the Prudential secured by that was gone, and the 

fact that it led indirectly to them protecting the ,;pcurity by this sub,:equent 

purchase of the Algiers line did not make the original investment a good one. 
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Mr. McLArGHLIX: It is legally an entirely :;:eparate trarn,action. If the 
bank makes money out of it it will help the liquidation but it does not pay the 
Prudential Trust Company loan. That is the position we take. 

His Lo!{DSHIP: I was wondering if there is any letter, I had not ob:;:erve<l 
one, in which it was stated specifically what was done with the money, the 
proceeds of the Herdman loan, and what resulted from it. 

Mr. McLAl:GHLIN: At the bottom of page 264, Mr. Clark<ion'i, evidence-
"Mr. McLArGHLIN: This is the ,,tatement you have i.n your report: 

"In this year, 1917, the New Orleans and Belle Isle Railway Company 
went into receiver\, hands following which its assets were taken over by 
holders of securities for loans prior to tho,c held by the bank as security." 
-A. When I :--ay 1917 I mean the fiscal year, the financial year between 
June the 1st, 1916, and May the 31st, 1917. That may have been in the 
fall of 1916, becau~c my understanding is tho:e receivership proceedings 
took place in the year 1916. 

Q. "The bank later acquired the South New Orleans Light & Power 
Company by the purcha:;:e of seruritie~ to the amount of $235,000. This 
raised its indrbtcdness to $845,000."-A. Well, now, terhnirally that is 
incorrect, because the two have always appeared -;eparately on the books, 
but at the time I made that report it was my undcn,tanding that they 
were linked together a:" they arc .;;till mentally linked together in the minds 
of the offa,•rs, that the 8500,000 adrnnced to the Prudential Tru-:t Com­
pany wa::, one transaction; that is connPcted with the st~am railroad 
which own::; f-:ome of the shares of this electric railroad, but.the purcha:;e of 
the electric railroad through this receivership and acquisition of the 
bonds against the property was another trarn,action. .. 

Q. They were two debts but both in connection with the N cw 
Orleans property?-A. Yes, and they are both mentally linked together, 
although they are legally separate. 

Q. So wl1en they reported to Air Henry Drayton that the New Orleans 
debt had not been incre~t'3ed they did not say anything at all about the 
additional adYance which was in the name of Hrrdman & Company?­
A. They could not under tho;::e circumstance::;, if they so reported. :\fork 
you, Mr. McLaughlin, I haYe not read this eorre-ipondence." 

That I think is the expLm,ttion. 
Mr. LEE: Read the DE·xt clause to his lordship. 

"Q. That is the explanation of the report to Air Henry Drayton, 
that the New Orleans arrount had bren reducul. The way it wa-; re­
duced was by writing off some interest that had been charged before, and 
the additional advance of $235,000. The additional advanrr, of c-ourse, 
you say, is mentally connec-ted. 'While it may be legally and terlmically 
separate, no doubt the advance was made for the purpose of :,aYing the 
previous investment.-A. I can ser no other reason for it." 

Mr. McLALGHLIN: I think aR far a::; that is conrrrned your lordship ha:; a 
full gra-;p of the fact., and I do not want to make thrm appear different from 
what tl-iey are. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: The mattrr is further dealt with on page 108 in a report 
from Mr. Mason. It would appear that they had the :,,erurity of the ~team 
railroad which controlled the electric railway upon which there wa::; a ~ort of 
~ernnd mortgage, Carroll having the first, and when they went down there 
according to this report they decided that the :;:team railway was not of a satis­
factory nature and should be abandoned, but there was a good margin in the 
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ac:-1et:-; and property of the Algiers Railway whirh in their opmwn c-hould be 
protedrJ. Tl,at i::i they had a sort of serond mortgage on that. 

~Ir. McLAcGHLIN: The serurity they had on the Algiers road was thi;;, 
that the .steam road owned the stock of the Algierc; road ami this ,-:tork w:1s d\'­
po~ited with a trust company as f'"< urity for the i<",;;ue of bonds which the hank 
had. It wu,; not a ,:econd mortga;re, it rnme sub,-rqurnt not only to t 11e bond 
mortgage, but rnb'-rquent to their debts, it wa-3 only a pledge of the ,,tn<'k. 

-:\Ir. SYMINGTON: Yes, there was $50,000 other debts and $180,000 bond.s. 
That ,-,eem'l to be the situation. 

His LORDSHIP: Is that where you get ihe $235,000? 
Mr. McLALGHLIN: The $235,000 was p2.id fur tbe artual purchaRe of the 

road. This Alg:pr-; road was takf.n over by a private r,1mpnny under a Rereiver­
ship and they brrame ab-olutely entitled to it. Thrn if I under1-Lmd rightly the 
way the bank h«ndkd it was they fnrmed a new corporation whieh took owr the 
road and i:;sued bond::i to the extrnt of $1,000,000 or more whieli eame to the 
bank. 

The next exhibit I refor to ts Ko. 34 on page 58. Thi:i is· a very import.ant 
cx:1ibit. It is the insprrtion of the Toronto Brunrh Offire by ~1r. Adair. When 
thut report was produced here from Mr. Robert:::' file in the Finance Department, 
all of whil'h wu:-; before ::--ir Thomas ·white, there was a :::chedule atta1•ht>cl to 
it, whieh is not printed. The rea.,;on it wa,- not printed if> that it would not he 
for the benefit of t lie liquidation ancl might be injurious to the credit of ~ome 
p\'nple ";10 have paid their debts. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: The srhedule is in, attached to the exhibit. 
· Mr. LFE': Might I point out that in ~fr. Clark:;on's report is'-'ued to the 

Court, rcfcrring,o the New Orleans Railway, he ,;ays:- ''During this year (that 
is the 14th year) afh-ance:,; in ret=:pect of the New Orlean::; inve-:tment amounted 
to $1,104,000 of which S882,000 appeared on·the books of the bank in the name 
of the Pruclt·ntial Tru~t Company of l\fontreal, and the balance as an advance 
to Herdman & Company." 

Mr. McLArGHLIN: This ,:chedule (attached to Exhibit No. 34) is very 
important. As it was not thought wise to publish it I do not want to read it 
for the same reason, but I want to refer to it. Mr. Edward,; goes over the items 
contained in thiR stat.Pment and shows losRes in connection with them amount­
ing to about $600,000. 

His LORDSHIP: That wac, a report to the Directors, was it? 
~Ir. McLAl'GHLIN: Y cs, on the in;,pection of the Toronto offi<e. 
His LORDSHIP: Where did it l'omc to thi-; Commi;:sion from, who produerd 

it? 
l\Ir. McLA-CGHLIN: It is one of the document'l submitted by the Western 

Directors to Sir Thomas White, it comes from his file. Mr. Edwards also had 
a eopy which he had taken from the original in the bank office, he referrerl to 
it but it was not put in a::; an exhibit. 

Hi-, LORDSHIP: This came from Sir Thomas Wh{te'.~ file. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: No, it was filed by Mr. Fisher with the Department as 

part of his evidence ju.,tifying his memorandum and was in the Departmental 
file. 

His LORDSHIP: When did it reach the Department? 
Mr. SYMINGTON: With Mr. Fi1-her's reprrscntation on January 22, 1916. 
His LORDSHIP: One is apt, or at least I am, to get mixed on the date,.:­
Mr. SYMINGTON: If your lord::;hip will recall that exhibits numbered 2 

to 42 comprises the briE-f of the Western Directors tep.dered to the l\linister. 
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Mr. LAFLEUR: It is the supporting material of their memorandum. 
Mr. Sn.1INGTu.N: After exhibit X o. 42 is the corre::;pondence between the 

Mini-,ter and other people, but exhibit 2 to 42 rornprise the brief which Mr. 
Fisher laid before the \Iini~tn of Finance in January 1916. 

Hi::; LORDSHIP: One is inclined to misapprehend in r<>ading these papers 
produrcd from the Minister's file and looking at the date and seeing 1915, to 
think he must have known of it then, but in fact he did not until January 1916. 

Mr. LEE: That is the first he ever heard of it. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: I refer your lordship to this exhibit and ask you to 

u,,e it in connection with Mr. Edwards evidence, which will show that while it 
was entirely ignored in the Mini,;ter's rorre,;pondenre it is really one of the 
most important doruments that is in. Any person reading it, and reading ~Ir: 
Adair's comment will sec that there was prartically nothing properly margined, 
-well perhapR I am going too far in saying that berau'ie there were a few good 
loans, but there was quite a h.rge amount of loans not properly margined. At 
the bottom of page 58, exhibit 34, l\fr. Adair says: 

"Call loan8-These amount to $1,607,000 of which $1,492,000 is 
acfvanred to Pellatt & Pellatt. Five accounts only, amounting to $20,07-1 
would appear to be adequately margined." 

Exhibit :Xo. 35 on page 59, give:=; a -:;tatemcnt of the Fro,;t acrount as it 
exi:=;tccl at tnat time. Exhibit No. 37 is a letter from l\frrrirk & Company, 
~olicitors in New Orleans to Mr. Anglin acting for the bank. Exhibit Xo. 38 
is a further fotter from ::\1errick & Company in whiC'h they report: 

"As regards the right-s of the Home Bank of Canada against the 
New Orleans & Ship Island Railroad and the Algiers Railway and Light 
Companv, we are sorry to say that we can -see very little possibility of 
the bank's recovery of any re:,;pectable part of its investment." 

Then Exhibit No. 39 is l\Ir. Adair's report. He and Mr. Anglin went to 
New Orleans to report on the situation there, and on page 65 Mr. Adair says: 

1 "In the following report I •bave left out of rom;ideration entirely 
the steam railroad property. Everyone interviewed agreed that there was 
nothing possible from this property beyond the first bondholders, who 
would not likely receive more than 50 C'ents on the dollar." 

On page 68, Mr. Adair goe::1 on to discuss the Algiers road, which was the 
only security: 

"As a lending proposition, I am inclined to think that $300,000, is 
an outside figure. As a fair valuation, midway between the attitude 
of a purchaser and a vendor, $400,000. As a prospect, with the New 
Orlean-, Street Railw,ay Co. in mind, for a logical purchaser, say $500,000. 

Mr. McCaleb, the Company's Secretary, is very familiar with the 
history and condition of the road. He claims to have sperialized in his 
legal practice, upon telephoning and street railway properties; he gi,=es 
the following estimate of values: 

Total construrtion value.. . . . . . . . . $200,000 
($150,000, for Algiers proper) 

Value of franchises. . 200,000' 

Total ................. . $400,000 

Then he speaks rabout the liability: 
"I would feel ,-afer, owing to the unrertainty as to the amount of 

repair work nereE-:-ary, and to the condition of the present rolling stock, 
to place total liabilities at $300,000. It, therefore, does not seem a proper • 
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thing to me for the Bank to put any further amount,-, into this proposition 
without at lea--t a material asHi,-fance from the Prudential Trust Co., 
and find it::,elf operating a railway at so great a distance with the 
pro~peds of a comparatively small profit." 

So they hnd a road the construrtion rost of which wm, $200,000 and the 
franchise value very uncertain, and prior claims again-,t it of 8300,000 accord­
ing to Mr. Adair's report. 

His LORDSHIP: It was really after that report that thl'y <lid proreed to 
loan the extra $235,000? 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: They did not loan it, they bought the property in the 
name of a corporation controlled by the bank, and i:;::::,ued bone ls to the bank. 
Of course we fully under<;tand they thought it a good gamble to buy for $235,000. 

His LORDSHIP: That might be all right if a man was dealing with his own 
money, then he ran gamble if he like-, t-0, but putting out other people's money 
i-< diffennt. 

:'.\Ir. l\IcLAt:GHLIN: It was ;:omething they :-hould not have done, although 
in thi,-, ra-,e it may turn out well. There are so many things of the same nature, 
like the Brifoh Dominions Holding Company where they bought ships and 
made Sl,500,000 lo,--;, ;-:o it would have bC'en a great deal wi-,;cr if th<'y had kept 
out of this speculation. 

Mr. Anglin was with Mr. Adair, and l1is report is Exhibit No. 40, on page 
69. At the bottom of page 71, he ,mys: 

'' !'understand from Mr. Adair that Mr. D:,vi:.-: would probably put 
the figure rather l1igllC'r than $250,000 wlwn as :'.\Ir. l\kCalcb, who prob­
ably knows the actual rost of construrtion, ns Mr. Adair telb mP, put 
it a;; low as $200,000. Of rourf'<' the,;e e~timates are on the ba;;is of a 
going concern." 

Mr. Anglin, ending the report, says: 
"On the whole, I should m5'belf be somewhat ,-,kcptical a::; to the 

existence of any very considt·rable value in the franehi"<''-l at the pre::;ent 
time." 

Adjourned at 1 p.m., until 2 .30 p.m., on Wedne,-day, ~lay 14, 1924. 

AFTERNOON SESSION 

OTIAWA, ( b,T., '\YEn.:q_-;nu, 14th May, 1924. 

Proceedings resumed at 2.30 p.m. 

Mr. :McLATGHLrn (Continuing hi,; argument): Exhibit 41 at page 73, my 
lord, is :'.\1r. Lash's opinion, which, on the whole, i'- not favourable to the bank 
aqvaneinir any more money on the New Orleans property. 

Exh:l>it 42, pagC' 74, is a statement of an alke;C'd ~ettlcment with Barnard. 
That ~how::: that the bank Wl're writing off $133,000 and over, and giving Bar­
na.rel ~15,000 in c·:1,-li and taking a note of the FirlPlity Trust Company for 
the balance. It al:-<o shows t'.iat Barnard 1lif'putc~ any liability whatl-vcr on the 
claim and ~tatc:; that he wa~ only acting as tru-;tee for the bank in ronnec-tion 
with the purchase of Banque Iuternat;onale Ftuck, and the cxrhange of the 
Banque Internationale :,tot·k for the Home Bank :;tuck. That ~t,atement ha:5 
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never been denied and Mr. Edward;'; in his evidence shows that in the final 

settlement he was treated a'I an agent, and that he appeared to be an agent 
from the beginning to the end; anrl the including in their statements a loan 

to Barnard of some $400,000 was merely a fraud and a misrepresentation; that 

it merely represrnted the ownership of 2,622 shares of the Home Bank stock, 

which really brlongcd to the bank, and was finally taken over by Daly, by 
the :'.\1anufacturen-,' Holding Company, a eompany which is indebted to the 

bank in over a million dollars which will be a dead loss. And that ;,hortly 
before t.he bank's failure, a loan was obtained by Daly on the stock, from 
;.:ome American banks; fraudulent of course; and the bank got some small 

portion of the allegPd indebtedne;;,; in that way._ But it ~hows th~t in 1916 the 

$411,000 of indebtrdness of Barnard was a nullity. It did not exist. 
Pagr 75, Exhibit 42, finishes the brief that :'.\1r. Fisher laid before Sir 

Thoma-; White. All of the dol'uments printed up to page 75, all the Exhibit:; up 
to Exhibit 42, together with the schedule to Exhibit 34, which your lord;,hip 
ha;; before you, complete the documents submitted to Sir Thomas "\Vhite. 

Now summarizing thc.~e document'3 it is s11own that for a year and a half, 
thr::-c direC't-0rs had bren trying to grt information and had failed to get it; 

that they had twice before suggested laying the matter before the Mini,,ter 

of Finance, but the first time their Counsel advi-,.ed them to corre"pond with 
some of the Eastern Director::- in the first place, and the -:econd time thev 
were put off by Gern·ral -:\fason; it sh<m s that Mr. Kennedy, one of the o:ffirC'rs 
of the bank, had been suspended, brcause he refusf'<l to sign the monthly re­
porb; it show-; that the management wa:3 entirely bad and unreliable, and 

were giving from time to time fal,:e information; that new Directors ·were a p­
p, iinted, practically, bi the ( ,encral :'.\'hmagrr without any notice to the 

Directors that sul'h business ,Yas coming up; that the annual return to the 

Gonrnment of 1915 'had bern ,rnt forward to the Government without having 

bren laid before or approvrd by the Direl'tor,:; it. shows that the Barnard loan 
of $-U 1.000 was an absolute nullity, only represented by the bank's stock, 

which Barnard rlaimed that he had only held for the bank and that he was 

under no liability whatever. It ~hows that the alleged srttlement with Barnard 
wa-., no settlement at all, was a mere play upon ·words; that the Fidelity Trm,t 

Company was controlled by Barnard. That appears at paii:e 85. I did not refer 

to that in going over it. It is one of the documents laid before Sir Thomas, 
shortly sub;,equent to this. As I say, it shows tjiat the Fidelity Trust Com­
p:iny w:t,.; a rompany eontrolle(l by Barnard, had no open office, had a judgment 

ag"1in<-t it for rent, and wa::; merely a name. It chows that an alleired loun of 
;3695,000 to the Prudential Tru,-,t Company, was not a loan to the Prudential 

Tru"t Company at all, but was a loan to the Xew Orle,rns R.tilway Company, 

and alleged to be guarantred by the PrudPntial Tru~t Company; that it had been 
Y, rongly rrported in return;, to the Government, a;: thC'y reported that they 
had no current loans out;:idc of Canada; it shows that thi,- Prudential Trust 
Company loan was "Born in sin, and shapen in iniquity." That thrre was 

first an attempt at t'.1e use of a half a million dollars of the money of the 
Provinre of New Brun~wick, by its trustee, not for the benefit of the Province 

but for the interE-,ot of the trustee, or ,-ome of the offieials of the trustee, and 
that that was no -:ecurity. It ,;hows that the !$750,000 fir,,t mortgi,ge bonds, 

whieh it Wa:5 alleged that the bank held a-; ,..ernrity, were not first mort11:age 
hnnds at all of the Steam Railroad, but ,vere ,-ecun·d only by the depo.-.it of 
,-toc·k of a subsidiary road; it show-: that the C'oun:oC'l ,that had been rc,t.ained 

in Xew Orleans had reported that there was 1ittle hopl' or little chanee of the 
Junk recovering any respeetable portion of their investment; that Mr. Adair 

and J\ir. Anglin had gone down tlwrt' and reported again-;t the bank advancing 
any more money; ~ub::;rquently of course the deal was made that we have 

gone over, by which the banl,:_ purchased the Algiers Road. That was not be-
' 
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fnrc ~ir Thomas Whit('. Before the bank purchasrd the Algier-: lfoad, their 
-:rcurity for the original dl'Ut w:t" complrtrly ~one, and all thPy had wa~ the 
1·ovemrnt or the ag;re•~ment nf the Pru~lcntial Tru~t f'ompany, an agrPrment 
whi,·h the hank never touk any ,:teps to enforce and ,vhid1 the Tru-;t Company 
!,ave rcpudiatt·d, and had repudiakrl at that t:me on the ground that it wa-; 
ultra vire:-. Their rcpudiat iun is :-hown in the evidencr at page-: 334, 341 and 
3--lJ. :--ir Thumm, ·white'-; e-vi, ll'nre. Ro hr kn!'w at the time that 1 hey re­
rudiatrd the liabilit~·- The whole thing looks :-o ,-,u, pi<·ious and "o era, ,krd 
that it impre,-;e-; it upon our mind!" that there are :-ume things that we do nut 
know about it yet. It wa:- an p,tr,tordinary loan for a bank to makr. Ci-en. 
~Ia,-,, m, it appeari', wa,-, al,.:o Diredor of t.he Prudrnt.i ti Tru~t Company; and 
A. C. ::.\1ac·,lonell, a Dirl'dur of the Prud<·nti:t! Trm,t Company, was shortly 
aftPrwarch; made a Dircc·tor of the Home Bank. Having found rn many 
rrookNl things in connrrtion with the Home Bunk, it does strike one as vrry 
rn,:p:eious that the Imm wata madn, and -very doubtful whether the money, or 
a goorl deal of it, ewr Wl'llt to the railway company at all. That of cour:-:e 
is only a :surmi,-e, but the rll·ment-; of rn:-pi1·ion are .-:o grrat that it impre-:,.:p~ 
it-,elf upon one. Then it !"hows the Pcllatt account, running up to somethinr 
ovPr two millions of dolbr-:; being partly a rnll 1onn tu PPllatt & Pellatt, and 
partly loans to various land companies controlled by Pellatt. Thel"e arr· 
rep0rted upon in Mr. Adair'!" ,;chrduh•, and thr "l'l'Uritil'-; hrld for thPm an 
notoricrn:-ly in,;uffiC'ient and not a good banking prnpo,;ition at all. :'.\Ir. 
Edward~. who ha,. auditC'd it, p,;timates a loss of ,-ome $850,000 in 1916, after 
v,tluing the ;acruritie:-<. That i;; intormation that could h:>,ve been found bv 
any ;ndepcndent audit at the timP. A typieal c·a,P in connection \\ ith th·c 
Pcllatt. ',; the Home City E,-tate:-; al'C'ount, which· i,; rdcrrPd to in Mr. Adair's 
srhcdule, to !<how how financing wa,- being done. In the case of the Home 
City Estate" it i:,; shown that a cPrtain piece of real e:-tate was bought for 
about $325,000; that the Home City F,Lltes was formed and that it took over 
the property subject to $200,000, and in payment thereof gave its pairl-up 
stock; in payment of the equity of $125,000 gave $600,000 of paid-up Rhwk 
and $418,000 of promi..,,-ory notes; the $418,000 of promi:,sory note-,,. were 
takPn by ::-,ir Henry Pcllatt and discount.('d in the Home Bank, which ac­
counted for part of the Pellatt & Pellatt loan. But arrording to Mr. Clark­
son',; evidence-which al;;:o rould have been found by an auditor at that 
time-$100,000 of ti.is $418,000 went to General Ma~on and his son as a :-ide 
g-rant and abu half the i'tork of the Home City Estates belonged to Gen­
eral l\la~on and his -.on. 

Thrn it shows the Frost acrount t-0 be about 81,850,000 at that time, and 
the hi;;:tory of that Frost account to some extent appc:1rs in the:-t'. papers and in • the subsrquent corre,.pondence and in the evidence. Frost had no money to 
buy timber limits; the bank advanced him the whole purchase price of the 
timber limits, and thP Chicago and Milwaukee loan and accrued intem:;t was 
tacked upon top of that. Then the interest accumulated from year to year, 
notliin12; was ever being paid, written up in the profibl in the year 1915, the 
la"t ~tatcment before the matter was submitted to Sir Thoma,; White, and the 
interest on this loan amounted to considerably more than the whole profits of 
the bank. 

Then there is Mr. Adair's report., which is a very important one. :'.\fr. 
EdwardR has g,me over the accounts mentioned in Mr. Adair'-, report, at p:igc 
502 of his evidenre and lie estimates a Iotas on the Canadian Debenture Corpora­
tion of $60,000; Canadian Property Company, improper chargt>.s of $60,000; 
the A. G. Holmes a<'count, which was for buying scrip, and which was 
practically little or no sernrity, ldt nearly $200,000. Mr. Adair· e,-,timate,-, 
a lo:;,-; of $150,000 on that. The "\V. G. :'.\,litchell & Co. account a loss of at 
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le3st $100,000. The account was $125,000 and Mr. Adair'.; report shows 
that the only f:ecurity held was :,,hares to the value of $2,765 and a collateral 
note for $29,000. This is an account which has never been paid, and neither 
have the shares. The Relindo Shoe Company, a loss of $100,000~ The Com­
pany wa:, insolvent at the time and little hope of recovering anything. 
The tofal of thrir claim was $116,500. The Bank sub~equPntly tried to 
recognize that rompany and thPir lo,:s. accumulated very much; larger than 
if they had taken the lo,::-; at the time. Then the Imperial Export Com­
pany, in liquidation, a claim of $19,000 against it. Mr. Adair reports that 
not more than $5,000 will be realized. James Mason, $71,460, and 
the security some shares in the Home Bank, even at the quoted price only 
worth $23,000. There was a total los, of $71,460. On other items in that report, 
Mr. Edwards makrs out a 10..:-; of $100,000. Adair's report shm\::-; a loss to the 
bank, as commented on by 3Ir. Edward;-; in lti:i evidence, to the extent of in 
round figures, about $700,000. It also show:5 that in the three largest accounts 
three times the capital of the bank was sunk in frozen asset:o upon which no 
intere3t was being paid; that these three largest accounts amounted to more 
than half of the bank's deposits. 

It -,howed a cm,e which wa:i, as admitted by Sir Thomas, disturbing. He 
would rn;>t admit that it was su,-,picious. But I think the words " disturbing " 
and '' suspieious " and all the '-'ynonyms that they may have in the Engfo,h 
language, are not sufficient to properly rliaracterize the :otate of affairs that "'.\Ir. 
Fisher's brief disclo,:rd. 

The' first question that your lord,:hip is askrd to answer is: were there 
representations made to the Finance Mininster in 1915 or 1916-our petition 
says 1915 and 1916, but we have not access to the document:-; at the time and 
1916 appears to be the date. 

The ~econd question i&: what wrre tho1:,e repre,:rntations? 
Your lordship of roursr will summarize tho:-;e representations in a better 

way than I could possibly do. 
Now I come to the second stage which is what was done with reference 

to thC:se rrpresentations. I will go over the correspondence chronologically. 
Part of it has been put in by Mr. Roberts in the Departmental file, and part 
of it by Sir Thomas White. Sometimes they are in twice, but I have indexed 
them chronologically. 

The first one is Exhibit 43 on page 75. It is a letter from Sir Thomas 
White to General Mason:-

"DEAR GE-.._r::RAL MASON.-There ha:5 been placed officially before 
me a memorandum signed by James FiRher, K.C., of Winnipeg, acting on 
behalf of Messrs. Crerar, Kennedy & Persse, Directors of your Bank 
residing in Winnipeg. This memorandum calls attention to certain 
accounts of your Bank about which it is eYident the Directors in question 
are much concerned, and in the circumstances I deem it my duty to ask 
for full particulars from your Board and from your Auditor whom I have 
to-day written in the matter. The aceounts in question are as follows:-

1. Prudential Trust C9mpany, $500,000. Certain correspondence 
which has passed between yourself and Mr. Crerar with reference to 
this account has bPcn placed bdore me and so far as I can ascertain 
from this corrc-,pondence the amount mentioned would appear to have 1 

been advanced by your Bank to the Tru-st Company upon trust to invr;;;t, 
under the guarantre of the Trust Company, upon spcurity of the bonds of 
the New Orleans and Western Railway Company, which from the memo­
randum and correspondence would appear to be of comparatively little 
value. 
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2. Pellatt & Pellatt, the Hom<' City E,-,tatec; Limited, Toronto City 
Estates Limited-total amount of advanres over 82,000,000. In connection 
with this it is pointed out in an irn,pertion rt>port of your Toronto branch, 
of which I have hPen furnislwd with a copy, that the :-:ecuritics held are for 
the most part unlisted and not desirable as call loan collateral. 

3. A. C. Frost & Company-amount of loan $1,700,000, the security 
for whirh appears to be prinripally in timber limits and licen~es. 

There are some other aecounts referred to in the im,pertion report 
mentioned whirh would-appear from the report to be in an un-:atisfactory 
condition but the threr set out above would appear to be those about 
whirh the Wc,-trrn Directors are chiefly ronrerned. 

I shall be oblip;cd if you will write me officially, setting out concisely 
the hi,-tory of thesr loans and inriicating the amount'< of unpaid interest 
(if any) in sueh accounts. I ali:;o reque~t a detailPd statement as to 
the securities held us collateral and the • Yaluation placed upon them 
by your Bank. Apart altogether from the question of security, the loans 
appear to me to be exceedingly brge having rpgard to the capital of 
your Bank and I can only exprp::,.; the hopC' that the concern which is 
undoubtedly felt by the Dire(-tors mentioned may prove to be unfounded. 
In directing to you this letter v. it h reference to the mpmorandum which, 
U'l I have f'L.tted, has rome before me officially, I am following the 
pral'tiee which we have hitherto adopted in similar ca:,;p,.; and am acting 
under the provisions of Section 113 of the Bank Act." 

~ir Thomas doe:s not mention the Barnard acrount at all about whirh the 
We:-t('rn Directors put in a special memorandum, anrl hP :-omewhat ignores the 
inspection report of Adair, which :show:; t11e general rondition of the head office 
of the bank to be so very bad. 

The next in order i:- Xo. 46, on pap;l' 78. That i;:: a 1i,tter of Sir Thomas 
'\Vhite to Sydney II. Jone~, a:,king him to make an inve:stigation under f'ertion 
56.\_ 

Thr third qUf·:-tion your lord:,hip iR a:;ked to an::'wer, I b •liPYe, is: wa" an in­
ve:;t-igation under RC'l'tion 56A justified? 

There can be no doubt about that on the material ~ubmitt0d; :~nd Sir Thomas 
Whit1/:a opinion also was that it was ja,tified. That i:,; shown by the artion 
he took and by his evidenl'e, when he :;ays undoubtedly it was ju:,;tified. 

The selecting, a:,; the auditor to inve--tig;ate a mutter of this kind, uf the bank's 
own auditor would seem to me to be falla('.iou-:, to LP entirPly unwarranted. I 
could easily imagine r.ircum~tume,; where the GoYernment rcquin·d ~ume further 
information, where that information could n•aclily be :::upplicd by the bank's 
auditor; but where the charge-; were, fraud, mi:::repn•,mtation, and di,honesty, 
and where it was chargrd that t.lw report-; ~Pnt in from time to timt by the bank 
and Higned by the auditor were falRe, fab-e a:-- to that Prudential loan, false as to 
the Barnard loan, fol,..,~ in the fact that they carried inricbtcdne,,R likt;! the O:::borne 
& Franris indebtcdne:,;:,; at its full face value long after that firm had cea~ed to 
function as a brokcrn~P firm at all, the fad that they continued to cnrry the 
Prudmtial loan at it" full fatC' aftn the ~r(·urity had nll gone, and that all of 
theRe things ha<l bP('n t ertifierl from time· to time by the auditor, then the sine 
qua nun of an inv!'-;tigation by an indrpendcnt lwmA invef'tigator vYa, ab,-o­
lutdy required, an<l the bank's auditor was not :mrh a per,-;on. ~o pr:-~on, my 
lord, ,rnuld have ronfidrnc!~ in thi:,; inn,-.tigation, if \\ e did not 1 dieve t'.iat the 
invc-tigator, the Commi-:,-ioner, wa;3 ah:-olutc'.y indrprndent. Not only lwne:,ty 
i:- 11P(·r>;,~ary for a fair invef'tigation, but imlependrnc<', brcau;.:1! human nat.ure 
i,- ~ueh that uncon;.:eiou~'.y our inten•-:t and our po,-ition influcn<·eR uur mind 
and judg1m·nt; no mat.tl'r how hone-,t a man m:,y be, if he is in a po-:ition RO that 

t 
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he cannot be indC'pendcnt, hr, i,: not a proper invc::-tigator. "\Ve know, in the case 
of an arbitration, how -very particular the 1law is, that no arbitrator ~hall have 
any interest; no matter how high hi:; character may be, or how honest he may 
be, he mu,-t havr no interC'st whatever in the matt.Pr on whit"h he arbitratr'<. 

BC'forC' I take up the.next document, I ju-,t wish to refrr for a moment to 
those alrrady cited. They mention t 1ie Frost, Pcllatt and New Orleans loans. 
Tlwy omit any mention of the Barnard loan nt all. In the letter to Mason, ~ir 
Thomas mentions the Adair report, whiC'h i:3 before your lord::;hip. 

Tlwn I refer to Exhibit 48 at page 79, which i:o the arknowledy,ment to Mr. 
Fbh<>r of the corre::pondence and brief. He say:-:-

"Dear Mr. Fisher,-! beg to aeknowledgc recript from you, aeting on behalf 
of Mc:::,rs. C'rerar, Kennedy and per::ise, Directors of the abo-ve Bank, of a mem­
orarn lum with corrP:-pondencC' attaehC'd relating to certain arnounts and tran;;­
artions of the Bank, al;::o a ropy of an inspection report (ksignatcd as the 
"Toronto Branch Inspc('tion No. 1" and dater! July 21st, 1915, dealinir with rer­
t.ain account;-; of the branrh in question, I ha.,ve drawn to the attention of the 
President and the Auditor of the Bank the account,, about which I understood 
from you your rlients were principally concerned, namely, the Prudential Trust 
Company arcount, the A. C. Fro:;t & Company acrount, and the Pellatt accounts, 
requesting d<:t-ailed information and explanation." 

The!) we go to No. 44 at page 76, which is merely a letter of General Mason 
asking for a delay. 

Then 45, on page 77 iE> merely a letter by Sir Thomas giving the time a::iked 
for by General Mason. 

No. 49 on page 79 is a further letter by General Mason to Sir Thomas 
White. It is not important. 

Then on page 80 we have No. 50, a lette_r from Sir Thomas White to Gen­
eral Mason. 

"Dear General Mason,-! have to thank you for yours of the bt 
instant. It ·will be satisfactory to me if I receive the statements m,ked 
for by the end of next week. I should like a ropy of the agreement 
between the Bank and the Prudential '.l'ru:-t Company in order to undrr­
stand the precise legal position of the account with the Trust Company. 
It will be neees:mry for me in this connection, in order to ascertain thr 
financial rei-ponsibi!ity of the Prudential, to order an investigation under 
the authority of the Trust Companies Act. I do not see very well how 
I can reach a condui-ion as to the value of the guarantee of the Tru;,;t 
Co'tnp3any without such in-vestigation." 

That invc-itigation appears not to have been ordered and never to have 
been made. 

The next in order is ~o. 51, at page 80, which is an offo-c memorandum 
made by Sir Thomas White, in the latter portion of which he says:-

"I spoke strongly as to the Frost account and generally imprec,sed 
upon them that a heavy duty devolved upon them in respect of the ad­
ministration of the bank with which they were now identified. With 
reference to the matter of payment of dividends and taking into Profit 
Account interest upon such loans as the Frost loan, I stated that this 
was a matter of judgment devolving upon the Directors who would have 
to be careful to see that they did not by p~yment of dividends impair 
th; capital of the bank and diminish the scetirity of depositors and other 
creditors." 

This was a very mild way of treating our friends. 
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The next one will be Exhibit 70 at page 161. This is a letter of ~Ir. La-,h 
dated February 14th, and :-eems to be the fir-:t time thut l\fr. La-,h come:- into 
this rorre:,;pondence. 

With reference to ~r. La>'h':,; relation:,;hip to the bank: Mr. Lac;h and his 
firm had been acting for the bank for some time; a.,; appears by the correspon­
dence, they liad acted for them in connertion with the :N"ew Orlcarn, Ruilway 
speciaily. Sir Thomas White endP:woured to make :-ome point by denying that 
Mr. Lash was Cuun::,el for the Bank at this time. Some little time ,later he 
was formally appointed Counsel and his firm ~oliritors for the hank, hut that 
did not make any difference whatever a-, tu his position; he was a(·ting as 
Com1;;:el for the bank and his firm acting as solicitors for the bank in tbe matters 
in que:-tion. Whrt.ber tb1,y had been regularly appointrd General ~oli1•itors or 
Coun;;:eJ or not made no differrnce whatevc r a,:: tu hi-: duty, or as to Lis position, 
or a-- tu t.he ('rcdit or ot!1erwi,::c that we shoukl gin- to hi;. action,::. 

Thi:: letter i:- one of the importanj: ll>tters and it rommenre,.; :-
"~Iy de·u :-:ir T'1oma-,, I telegraphed you thi::3 morning ,aying that 

I was writing you to-day to explain why yuu have not re1·eived the 
infomation you asked from ficneral Ma•on. I was, of rour1--r, rrfdring 
to the statement-; which you c:1lled for from the Home Bank. I am 
·writing you privatrly becausP I want to tell you frankly ,vh:tt th present 
pn-:ition is and I do not know huw much of this information you would 
likr to make official. If you want any of it repeated in an otticial form 
let me know and I will write you officially. Quite rerently the Home 
Bank has been consulting myt'elf and Mr. Anglin about ;:ome of the 
cump!il'at.ed al'('Ounts, etc., and in this way I began to grt an inkling 
into the situation. On Saturday h,t General :'.\lw;on and Mr. Barnard, 
one of the Directors, had a long talk with mP. They showed me the 
lPttrn, whiel1 you had written to General ~b,on asking for information 
with respect to t11rcc important arrounts. ~r. Barnard explained what 
had taken plar·e at the interview whirh he and ~Ir. HanPy had wit.h 
you, and they explained al1-o what had t,1 kl·n p1 

Hl'l' at the• ,mb"equent 
Boar,: mepting.;; at ,vliich the Winnipeg Director, wPrc prP:-PTit. The 
1-pcrial rca:-un for thrir talk with me on Saturday wa;: to a"k me t-0 tak1· 
down to you .::ome long statrments ·whi1·h had bPen prt:pared re,pe<'ting 
the thrre aerount, refrrrl'd to. ::;;nme little time ago I formed the opinion 
that until a full investigation into thr valurs of the bank's f\,::,ets and into 
their liquid and tird up po;;:ition was made noboJy e,mld form an in­
telligent opinion a,; to tlrn rrmr,p whieh the bank should pun=-ue with 
reforl'nre to the big accounts referred to or with referen('e to the more 
important mattrr of it-: going on in bu-sine--:. I haYe no opinion upon the 
latter quc-;tion brcau;:r no opinion ran be former! without the informa­
tion rf.'ferred to. I became 1-ab,fied some time ago that the Gt>nf.'ral 
managrmrnt wac: wodully df'fcdive hut of \"Ourse I rould not expreFs 
any opinion upon this to the General Manager himself who 1·ume to 
r·on.;;ult me. I lrarntd priYatPly from l\Ir. Fif'her when hf.' was !iPre that 
the Winniprg Directors were unable to obhin from thr managrment 
,;uffieiL·nt information to enable thrm to judge as to the arrount-: rdern•d 
to or as to the general position of the bank and that they had appealed 
to you to call for special returns about thr three acrounh. I expressed 
to Mr. Fi~her mv opinion about the management, and told him that unless 
new management was introduced the p_osition of the bank would, I 
thought, become more complicated and might berome hopeles,;." 

Mr. Lash's opinion at this time seems to have been very sound. 
"I was glad to learn that the General Manager had offered his 

rc,;:ignation and that a committee of the Board had been appointed to 

' 
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seek for a new Grneral ::\lanager. I was alrn glad to learn that at th~ 
Board meeting:- when the Winnipeg Director:- were here, and after the 
natural acrimonious discussion which took place, harmony was restorerl 
and the Board became unanimous with respect to the proper treatment 
of the bank's affairs. This I think was fargely due to the fact that :\Ir. 
Haney, one of the new Directors, convinced the Winnipeg Directors 
that he was in arcord with them instead of being, as they had feared, 
in accord with the management. The other Directors followed Mr. 
HanPy's lead and all are a unit with re:,pect to (1) introducing new and 
efficient management; (2) getting to the bottom of all important arcount'> 
and transactions of the bank; (3) going into no new accounts or impqrtant 
£ransactions until the permanent position is decided upon." 

Then on down at the bottom of the page, lust paragraph, he say,;: 
"I have been a~kcd by the Committee to help them to fhd a new 

Grneral Manager and I am doing what I can in that direction. From 
what I know of t:1e three acrounts referred to, the fullest statements 
rc:;pcf'ting them which could be ,ent to you would not ad\'ance the 
situation very far in your mind. You would have to go deeper and inquire 
into the whole position." 

I am referring to that especially,_ becau-,,e all the Minister ever got was 
ledger statement-, of the-:e arrounts, and those app:uently did satisfy him, 
r.ltl101:1gh Mr. Lash told Lim, a11d rightly told him, and what any intelligent 
per:-;on would know, that ledger statements of such accounts as these, with such a 
hist<Jry as they had, would be of practically no value, but merely bookhrping 
st.atcments which did not go into the matter 'at all, did not go into the que:-ation 
of the liability of the partie:,;, like the Barnard loan, for instance, the ledger 
would show that the amount was rharged as a loan to Barnard. Barnard so 
,-tated, and it was so stated al,:o to Sir Thomas, White in the document;; filed, 
that he owed the bank nothing, that he wa;, a mere tru,-tee or an agent for the 
pur<'hac:e of t!1e ~tock. 

Neither would a ledgrr statement of the Pellatt account ;:;how a fr:rndulent 
tran,c1etion like the Home Citv E,tate 1matter. 

Then on the next page he ·says: 
"The Board ~eems inclined to rely very much upon my advice and I 

am in sur!t relations with them that I ran voluntrer advice and if you 
would like me to advise any partieular course I shall be glad to be so 
informed. I can give you an m-,urance of my personal belief that the 
prcsmt manageIJ1ent is well in hand under l\1r. Haney's per::onal direction. 
The General :Manager is not now in charge or giving any directions." 

The next one is Exhibit 71, page 162, from Sir Thomas White to Mr. 
Lash: 

"DEAR MR. LASH: I have your private lettn of the 14th instrint and 
think I mu;:;t ask you for the ~tatement,; to which you refer. In thc·m­
selves they may disclo~e a :=:ituation which apart altogether from the 
question of other account,; would cause mr to bring the affairs of the Bank 
to the attention of the Banker,;' .A::,sociation through it,:i President ,here. 
The position is that I haYe been made aware by the Winnipeg Directors 
of a certain condition which is most disturbing. It' does not appear to 
me that I would be ju;:;tified in staying enquiry berause the Winnipeg 
Directors may a-,k me to suspend artion. The real qm:stion is whether 
the Bank, having regard to the condition which will be disclosed by the 
statements should be allowed to continue business with the public." 
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Xow, Sir Thoma,; White',, judgment at tbi,: point appt>ur,- to be sound. 
Why should we have a Canadian Banker,' A,:~<>l'iation if tht'Y should not be 
run:-ult1·rl in a muttrr of this kinrl? ·why were thry created but to excrci~e 
a l'<'rtain amount Df :-:upervi,-ion over banks? Tl1c Banker:5' A;:sociation is sup­
pu,t-d to indude the ablP;;t baliker-, of the country. The Honourable J:1m1•:-1 
l\Ia.-=nn, Prc,-irll-nt of the Home Bank, wa:5 a member uf tl1at As:-ociation. 
Thtit A,-,--.ll'iation, surely, could br trusted to do what wa,: in the be,,t intere,,t,; 
of the bank, and to do wl1at was in the best intrrestR of the banking situatilln 
of the country. They ,urrly could be truste,l not tu do anything thai would 
cau,e a C'ri-::s, if it could be avoided, not to do anything that would !'au:;e a run, 
ii it eould be avoided. It. -:;c>rms to me that Sir Thomas White';-; view, at that 
time, was the only rational YiPW a rational man C'Ould take with any knowlld~e 
of banking at t1iat particular time. 

Now, we 1·omc back to 52, page 81. That i-, a further letter by Mr. Fi-her 
to ~ir TIJOmas ,Yhite. At the bottom of page 81 he ,mys: 

"Meantimr., I had a wire on the 13th inst., from Mr. La-:h, in which 
it watl intimated that he was in communication with you-that you werr 
asking for a report on some matters, pariirnlars of which he did not 
mention, but which I as:mme related to the matters rPfr.rrrd to in my 
memoranda. In this wire, 2\Ir. Lash stated, also, that he had written 
you explaining the pre:-ent po:-1ition, and that the Board was now in 
accord, and would have new management and full investigation as rnon 
a8 possible, adding that he had the information that you asked for, but 
as it would be useless to you unlec:s full invef'tigation were made~ he 
was holding it in the hope that you would allow investigation to be made 
uncler the direction of the Board, and he :e;uggested that I should get my 
clients to communicate with you and make request accordingly." 

This is incom;i,;tent with a subsequent letter that Mr. Lash wrote. It wu'l 
to have an inve,:tigation made under the direetion of the Board, and this is 
the fir~t time that that is mentioned. 

On a little further, he ,;ay~: 

"It i:5 true that my dients are mo:5t dP~irous to co-operate harmoni­
ou:5ly with Mr. Haney, whom ~fr. La~h, rightly fl.>' I think, rep::wds as 
the strong man among--t tl1e Eastern Members of the Board, and at the 
recent meetings I underf'bnd my clicnt:5 gave evidence of such de~ire. 
But it wa-; quitP clear to me that they would not fur a moment be <'ontent 
with an inVE,-tigation to be c-ornlmted by the Board as at present con-
stituted. It wa,; decided, indred, that after Mr. Crerar returned I was I 
to prepare a communication to be :-:cnt to you, expreHing mo,t ~trongly 
their de:::ire that a special audit of the Bank's atiairs-tourhing p,:pecially 
the larger acc·ounts in the Toronto office-8hould be directed by the 
Finance Department. Thef'e accounts would inrlude especially the Fro::;t, 
the Prudential, and the BarntLrd accounts. The latter, they :-trongly 
felt, should be fully investi!,!;ated not.withstanding the settlemPnt that 
had been reported to them rer<'ntly, as referred to in the memorandum 
upon that account, and the attach:d papers." 

That account Sir Thomas never mentions in any of his corre:oponclenre 
notwithstanding how oft.en it was presented. 

"Another point that they are anxious about is this: Prior to the 
meetings at which they recently att,emlcrl, a resuh1.t.ion was pa~-:Prl, giv­
ing the general manager leavJ of absence, and appointing his rnn, who 
is the assistant general manager, to be acting general manager. My 

\ 
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clients were anxious that at once some fresh blood should be intro­
duced into the general management for the time being, and proposed 
to have Mr. Adair, the Supervisor who made the Toronto inspection last 
year, acting assistant to the gene-ral manager. They were greatly dis­
appointed that the Board refused to do this, but this point will be re-
ferred to more fully, perhaps, in my next communication." ,., 

' . It will be found all the way through that, strangely, Mr. Haney used all 
his influence to keep the Masons in the management, and every suggestion that 
was made to have any fresh blood brought into the management was turned 
down through his influence. 

The next one is Exhibit 53, page 83, a further communication from Mr. 
Fisher. This is dated the 21st of February, 1916, in which he says.: 

" They very decidedly approve the view expressed in Mr. Lash's 
telegram referred to in my letter, to the effect that a full investigation is 
required. This, of course, they understand to mean a full investigation 
of the Bank's affairs generally, including the acts and conditions that 
have led to the present situation. -

And they are equally firm in their conviction that under the circum­
stances disclosed in the three memoranda placed in your hands at their 
instance on 22nd January last, and the papers accompanying the same, 
including the report of the first inspection of the chief Toronto office, it 
will be wholly unsatisfactory to have an investigation made by the 
Board as at present constituted." • 

That is one thing they repeat over and over again, and are very anxious 
that 'that should be inspected. 

On down further he says: 
" I find that· I was .in error in stating that the Board had turned 

down their proposal to appoint Mr. Adair as acting assistant general 
manager. The fact was, as my clients now advise me, that they proposed 
this to Mr. Haney, who entirely disapproved of it, and urged very 
strongly that ip. the meantime matters be left as they were." 

On the ne:xt page: 
"Having regard also, to the general management's failure to make 

an inspection of that offic'e until last summer, they are not content even 
in the meantime to have the general manag~ment wholly left as it 
now is. They were, in fact, very greatly disappointed that Mr. Haney 
took the attitude he did. as they were hoping that he would see his way 
to meet their wishes on that point at all events. 

My clients wish me to assure you of their great desire to bring about 
a condition of accord in the Board, but their view is that there can be no 
real accord unless weight is given to their contentions in respect of the 
matters that have been brought to your notice. The fact is, that in the 
past no weight whatever has been given to their views, they alone having 
been pressing for about a year and a half for 1a change in the conduct of 
the bank's affairs, especially in connection with the general management 
and the Toronto office." 

Down lower: 
"And touching the Frost account, my clients have information which 

suggests to them the essential importance .not only of a full eµquiry 
into the securities, but also a full investigation into the history of the 
account and making of the ~dvances as well• as_ taking the securities." 

79137-4 
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It was found that a considerable portion of the,:e advances from time to 
time went into General Masons own pocket. That is especially the case with 
the Home City Estates account, hundreds of thousands of which went to Mason 
and his• son. · 

'!As to the Prudential account, my clients have no doubt that Mr. 
Anglin will be able to trace this to the bottom to a la'rge extent, but they 
regard it as' very important that the whole siuation should be examined 
in the proposed investigation. They are impressed with the situation 
that both the president and Mr. Barnard were members of the Prudential 
Board, while they have been informed-through this they cannot confirm 
-that Mr. Barnard was himself interested in one of the New Orleans 
Companies that figure in the transaction. 

Respecting the Barnard account, my clients realize the delicacy 
of the situation, seeing that it has been settled, and that Mr. Barnard 
is now on the Board, but they cannot refrain from expressing their 
conviction as to the desirability of an' investigation notwithstanding the 
bettlement." 

Then on page 85: 
"I am also enclosing copy of a mercantile agency report on the 

Fidelity Trust Company, whose paper was taken to cover the remainder 
of the Barnard account after the settlement. From this you will see, 
amongst other thinirs, that Hr. Barnard him~lf is a director of this 
Company, and its affairs, you will see, are understood to be largely in the 
hands of his 'law firm. 

On the whole, it is the hope of my clients that you will be able to see 
your way to direct a full investigation by an auditor appointed by your 
Department." 

The next is Exhibit 54, page 86, Sir Thomas White's ack~owledgment to 
Mr. Fisher, in which he says: 

"The position I have taken with Mr. La..<,h is that I desire the state­
ment which I have asked for on the complaint lodged by you on behalf 
of the Western Directors." • 

I think your lordship mentioned something some time about complaint. 
His LORDSHIP: Y cs. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: The letter continues: 

"It does not appear to me that I would be justified in foregoing my 
request for such information on the ground that the Board is now in 
harmony. You make certain definite explicit charges which I conceived 
it my duty to investigate. When I receive the report in those matters 
from the Home Bank or Mr. Lash I shall have to determine the course 
proper for me to take. My duty of course lies to the public-" 

I have no quarrel whatever to make with that statement. That state-
ment, I think, expresses Sir Thomas White's sound judgment. All the Directors 
were intere:;ted part~es. When the matter came before Sir Thomas from these 
Directors, when all this information and correspondence wac, laid before him, 
a state of facts were disclosed which affected the public, dealing with a public 
institution chartered by the Government, and no reconciliation of the Directors, 
no restoration of harmony, nothing whatever that could be done by them could 
absolve the Minister from whatever his duty might be to the public, but being 
the only official that stood between them and loss, that stood between them and 
tragedy as has occurred in this case, no reconciliation of the Directors could 
have a~y effect whatev~r in absolving him from performing the great trust 
imposed on him under the Bank Act. 
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Of course it is said that this is not compulsory. It is said the words used in section 56a of the Bank Act are "may" not "must" or "shall." We all know that has been the universal practice since the earliest times in referring to the 
Crown and Ministers, to never use the terms "must" or "shall" but always give their powers and duties, of all kinds a discretionary character on the theory that 
the King can do wrong, on the theory that no compulsion is ever needed to be applied to the Crown, on the theory that the Crown will always do complete justice when a matter is brought to its attention. Consequently, all the duties that are imposed on a Minister of the Crown in this Dominion are discretionary 
in that sense, but in a larger sense, when the circumstan9es arise requiring the performance of these duties for the benefit of the public, while not their com­pulsory duty yet it is their polical duty, their duties as the servants of the Crown, as the servants of the first servant, of the whole people, to exercise the powers that are imposed on them for the general good. 

The next one is 55. It is a further letter by Sir Thomas White, on the same page, to Mr. Fisher, in which he says, on page 87: 
"You will, I am sure, understand that the situation is a rather delicate 

one and that it is important not to make a mistake in judgment either on 
the one side or on the other. If the bank is sound it would be advisable 
in the public interest that it should be allowed to contin~e in business. 
If, on the other hand, it is not ;;,olvent the question arises as to allowing it to continue. I shall endeavour to obtain as full information as pos,,ible 
before reaching a final conclusion. In the meantime I am informed that 
the Bank is perfecting its ::;ecurity with Pellatt & Pellatt and endeavour­
ing in every way to strengthen its position. I am glad you have sent a 
copy of your letter to Mr. Lash in order that, as :;pecial solicitor• for the 
Bank, he may understand the attitude of your Directors." 

The next is a letter of February 24th, 1916, from Sir Thomas White to Mr. Lash, Exhibit 56, page 87, in which he says: 
"DEAR MR. LASH: I have received this morning a letter dated Feb­

ruary 21st' from Mr. James Fi5her, K.C., of which he informs me he has 
sent you a copy. In view of the opinion. which these clients evidently 
entertain as to the larger accounts of the Bank and their want of confi­
dence in the Board of Management as at present constituted, it would 
appear to me that I would only be justified in allowing a reasonable 
time for the Bank to perefect its security and improve its position 
under the accounts about which I made enquiry. I hardly think I 
should be warranted in relying upon the report brought. back by Messrs . 
Haney and Crerar from British Columbia. I assure you I do not desire to take any rash step which might have a serious effect both Qpon the 
Bank and the general financial situation." ' 

That letter is a reference which appears from time to time, that he was 
considering very deeply, which he had a perfect right to do, the financial situa-tion during war times. · 

Then the letter proceeds: 
I 

"but on the other hand I must protect the public interest. I therefore feel 
that I must at an early date draw the matter to the attention of the 
President of the Canadian Bankers' Association with the request that the 
pos"ition of the Bank be investigated. It would appear to me "that the 
Bankers' Association could do this very thoroughly and much more 
efficiently than ,any auditor I could a,ppoint or any official I could name 
for the purpose." 

79137-4½ 
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I am still agreeing most heartily with Sir Thomas's judgment. As I Raid a 
moment ago, if the Canadian Bankers' Association are of any use at all they 
ought to have had an opportunity of functioning in a crisis of this kind. 

The next is another 'letter from Mr. Fisher to Sir Thomas White, Exhibit 
57, page 88. I need only repeat one clause. He says: 

" My clients having preRented their view very fully and very 
frankly-'' 

This is a quotation from: a letter he sends to Mr. Lash as counsel for the 
Bank. 

" to the Finance Minister and to yourself as chief counsel of the 
Bank, are entirely sati<,fied to leave the matter in his hands and yours 
to decide what action will be taken. No one connected with the Bank 
can more earnestly or sincerely than they do dc-,ire that any action 
taken will lead to a betterment of exi:;;ting conditions." 

The next one is Exhibit 59, page 89. It is a formal letter. , 
The next is Exhibit 72, at page 163. I have already read to your lordship 

Mr .. Fisher's letter in which he stated that Mr. Lash had been urging to have 
an investigation, an inside investigation, and which Mr. Fisher did not agree 
to. 

When I come to this Exhibit 72, I ask your lordship to turn to page 164 
and read Mr. Fisher's letter which is enclosed in Exhibit 72, and which is not 
marked a~ a separate Exhibit. This letter is eluted February 23, 1916, in which 
Mr. Fisher says to Mr. Lash: 

"My Dear Lash,-1 have just had a conference with Mr. Haney, 
along with Messrs. Crerar and Kennedy. 

"In our conference we discussed the prei;ent situation somewhat fully, 
and I read to Mr. Haney the two letters I had written lo the Finance 
Minister, as well as my letter of the 18th to yourself. Mr. Haney, I find, 
appears to be under the impression that a E\pecial audit under the direc­
tion of the Finance Minister might tend to bring about a crisis in the 
affairs of the Bank. Certainly neither my cli~nts or I have had nor 
have we the slightest idea that such an audit would tend to such a 
result." 

I am calling your lordship's attention to this, that this is the first time it 
has been -suggested by anybody that a special audit or an examination of the 
affairs of the Bank would cau<,e a crisis or a run on the bank, and that this 
•idea, is not Sir Thomas, White's idea, it is not Mr. Lash's idea, but is1 :\Ir. 
Haney's. Mr. Haney seems to be a man of great personality. He seems to be 
able to impress his view's and force his will on everybody. All the iniquities 
that arose, and had brought about a change in Sir Thqmas White's mind from 
having an hone1:,t, independent investigation to having none at all, emanated 
and originated not with Mr. Lash but with Mr. Haney, and is so expressed 
in this letter. 

" They still hold to the view that, as expressed in your own telegram 
of the 14th, a full investigation is required, and they still hold the view 
that- under existing circumstances an investigation by the present Board 
would not be satisfactory. 

"I need not point out to you that my clients, who have a high 
regard for Mr. Claud Macdonell-" and so forth. 

Now, I want to call your lordship's attention eRpecially to the sequence 
r,f events. Some time before this Mr. Lash had suggested to the Western 

• 
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Directors,,no doubt acting on a suggestion from Mr. Haney, an inside investi­
gation. They disagreed with him. Now, Mr. Haney suggests this to the 
Western Directors, and, for the first time, raises the question that an investiga­
tion by the Finance Department might cause a run on the bank. Mr. Fisher 
sends that letter to Mr. Lash, and Mr. Lash, on the 29th of February, writes to 
the Minister, and, in effect, he says he disagrees with Mr. Haney. 

His LORDSHIP: Yes, that is so. 
Mr. McLAl1GHLIN; And he agrees wi.th Mr. Fisher. 
His L?RDSHIP: That is right, so he docs. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: And he goes back on the previous suggestion that he 

had made, I suppose on Mr. Haney's suggestion, that the inye:,tig,ation should be 
inside. He says in this letter: 

"Mr. Fisher's statement in this ,letter, that his clients, having presented 
their views very fully andvery frankly to you and to myself as chief coun­
sel of the Bank, 'are entirely satisfied to leave the matter in his hands and 
yours to decidE) what action will be taken' seems to throw a good deal of 
responsibility upon me." 

And with that load of responsibility on his shoulders he goes on to repudiate 
hi$ previous views and to accept t.l1e Western Directors' views that the investiga­
tion must be independent.· 

He says: 
"In my inwrview with you in Ottawa on the 22nd I expressed my per­

:;onal opinion as to the gen~ral position, and I :-:aid that my main object was 
to so manage matters that if the Bank had to liquidate, the liquida­
tion might be with open doors. This can only be accomplished. with the 
assistance of other banks. 

"Personally, I huve given up hope of. being able to secure a competent 
person who could undertake the general management, without first. fully 
investigating the position. I have always thougjht-" 

Notwithstanding what he expres~ed before, at ,his elients' request. 
"I have always thought that the investigation shoulii b~ by an outside com­
petent person who would be quite free from any interference by the pres­
ent management or Board. 
· "The best course may be to consult t.he Bankers' Association with 
refer~nee to the person who is to make the inYestigation, as it might be 
important that the Asso('iation should feel able to rely upon his report, if 
their m,si-,tance were asked, instead of having to grt a further report from 
their own nominee. I do not feel that I have sufficient authority to decide 
this que:=;tion mysrlf, at the present time, and as soon as Mr. Haney 
rc·turm from the W e:=;t I shaa a,:k that a meeting of the Board be called, at 
whieh I ,-hall attend, anq after full explanations,· a'sk for more formal and 
general authority." 

I , , 
Now, he gave his own view, but he says he is going to a;;;k for the views of and 

the authority of the Board. ' • 
On the ,:,ame day, while this lc>tter wa'l not before the Minister, still Mr. Lash 

state,; that he had thi,: letter, which we are reading. He states, in the first clause 
of the letter, that he wmt over the whole business and laid his views before Sir 
Thoma~. and I feel quite sat,isfied that the views he laid before Sir Thomas will 
be the same views that he expressed the same day to Mr. Fisher in Exhibit 132, 
page 292, the Exhibit commencing at page 291. I need only read on page 292: 

"The more I consider the Bank's position, even assuming that every 
account will ultimately be collected in full, the more doubtful I feel as 
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to the possibility of it-; continuing in business. The amount locked up 
indefinitely in four large accounts, is probably three times the paid-up 
capital, and more than half the total depo;;its; and if anything should take 
place which would rau'le a comparatively small percentae;e of the de­
positors to a,;k for their money, I do not see how the Bank could, with­
out assistance from outside, continue with open doors." 

The next is Exhibit 61 at page 90. That is merely a letter....from Mr. Jones 
in which he sent in the ledger statements of the Frost account. 

Exhibit 62, page 92, is merely a letter of acknowledgement. 

Then we rame to Exhibit 73. 

His LORDSHIP: Now, you are grtting down to where he changed hi,- views 
altogether. 

Mr. McLA"eGIILIN: There are a couple of documents there. 

His UORDBHIP: You are still on page 163. 

Mr. McLAL'GHLN: Yes. 

His LoRDP.HIP: That is the one you have been talking about. 

Mr. :McLAUGHLIN: Yes. We go to page 165. At the top of the page there 
is a document not marked as an Exhibit, it has gone in without a number. 
It is a letter from 8ir Thomas White to ~Ir. Lash: 

''Dear Mr. LASH,-I have yours of the 29th ultimo. My view is 
that I should in the near future consult the President of the Canadian 
Bankers' Ai;::sociation with respect to the affairs of the Bank. Please 
let me know when you expect Mr. Haney to return." 

Then there is Exhibit 73, page 165, datecl March 2nd, 1916, which is the 
first indication that Mr. Lash is going back upon his well considered opinion. 
He say;;: 

"I had a talk with General Mason yesterday and from what he 
said about the .timber property in British Columbia I think that it 
would be wise to await .:\Ir. Haney's return before speaking to the 
President of the Bankers' Ac::,ociation, unless, of course, somethin~ 
should intervene which should make it nere::,-,;ary in the mc>antime. I 
think nothing is likely to intervene, and that no public interest will 
suffer pending Mr. Haney's return." 

Then we go to Exhibit 74, a letter of March 4th, 1916, which is Mr. La.,h's 
recantation. He had promised in his letter of February 29th, that -a meeting 
c,f the Board would be held and that he would get his instructions from them. 
That meeting has evidently been held, because he says: 

"The only members of the Board who could be called together at 
once are, the Pre-,;ident, General Mason, Mr. Claude McDonald, ~I.P., 
Mr. Flynn and Mr. Barnard. I would not be satisfied with any derision 
arrived at by the::;e gentlemen. Mr. Barnard's connection with the 
Prudential, and his personal account 'with the Bank, would make it 
difficult for him to expres'l any opinion. Mr. Claude McDonald has 
not given much attention to the affairs of the Bank for some time past, 
and I think he would ask to be relieved from the responsibility of any 
important decision. Mr. Flynn I do not know personally, but I undet'­
stand he is a very old gentleman, who very seldom expresses any opinion 
as to matters coming before the Board. General Mason, is of course, not 
the one to a:,k for instructions from. P 
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A little further down it continues: 
"I learned that \ir. Haney was in Vancouver yesterday, and I tele­

graphed him saying that it was of the utmost importance that a Board 
meeting, at which he and the Western members would be present, should be 
held at the_ earliest moment, and asking when he could be here with them. 
I have just received his reply as follows:-

"I expect to .. be in Toronto on March 16, ·and the Western Directors 
will attend meeting March 21." Should anything occur to change the pres­
ent situation before the m0eting 'can be held, I will at once communicate 
with you, meantime I would feel relieved if I got your intimation that you 
would not speak to the President of the Bankers' Association in the mean­
time. Of course I k:µow that the public interest must be paramount in your mind,. and any intimation you may give to me will be subject to your 
freedom of action, should you be of opinion that the public interest requires you to do. anything. _ ' 

If the Bankers' A~so<;iation were asked to, intcyfcre, my experience 
tells me that no matter what the pledge of confidence may be, and no 
matter how faithfully it may be kept by those gJiving it, yet the situation 
would become public property in a very short time, by the whisperings 9r 
talking of others, including the bank's own staff. This would precipitate 
matters before we are ready ·to deal with them in the best interests of the 
public, and it is that which I am specially anxious to avoid."· 

Mr. L"ash had evidently expr~ssed views like that before to Mr. Fisher, and in his letter of the 29th he retracts them, and he said he has always been of the opinion that no other aud_it but an independent audit was of any use. And what experience could arise between the 29th of February arid the 4th of ~farch ta justify him in saying that his experience showed that an investigation of that 
kind would cause a crisis? 

In this investigation nobody has ever suggested. that there ever had been any instance when a bank run has been caused by an outside audit, and surely the Bankers' Association have tact and ingenuity, and brains enough to have a suffi­cient investigation made of that bank without bringing about the crisis that is 
feared by Mr. Lash here. , Now these words of Mr. La!:lh are practically the i::ame words as expressed by l\'Ir. Haney mentioned in Mr. Fisher's letter of February 23rd to Mr. Lafo, which letter l\ir. Lash forwards to the Minister. And notwithstanding that he knows Mr. Haney's views at that time and that that particular matter had been I brought to his attention, still he says: 

"I believe the only audit of any value is an independent one." 
The next is at the top of page lq7, not marked with a number, letter of Sir 

Thomas White to 11r. Lash: 

"Copy. 
Personal. 

I• 

OTTAWA, March 8, 1916. 
Re Home Bank 

Dear Mr. LAsH,-I qave yours of the 4th instant, and think it proper to defer action until after the 16th instant when I understand Mr. Haney's 
report will be received as to the British Columbia timber limits held in con­
nection with the Frost account. It is altogether probable that after that date I shall feel it my duty to bring the bank's affairs to the attention of 
the association. They will then have before them the materiail with which 
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I have been furnished and Mr. Haney's report, which they would no doubt 
desire to see before taking action. 

Yours very truly, 

Z. A. Lash, Esq., KC., 
Canadian Bank of Commerce Building, 

Toront9." 
' 

Sir Thomas White has not changed his mind at that time owing to Mr. Lash's 
letter of the fourth. 

The next is not marked either, it is at the head of page 168, from Mr. Fic,her 
to Sir Thomas White, merely repeating what he sbted before. 

Then there is letter No. 78, page 169, l\fr. La;:;h to Sir Thomas White; anl No. 
79, on the same page, Mr. La~h to 8ir Thomas \\-hite, in which he states that Mr. 
Haney had been appointed Vice-President and will make the affairs of the bank 
the first charge on his time till it i-; in a p<'rinanent position one way or the other 
and will if necessary devote rull his time. He will accept no remunrration until it 
is seen that the bank can afford it, and then he will take what the shareholders 
may deride. 

"Mr. Machaffie is an old Bank .. Manager and was train~d in the 
Mer<;hants Bk. and B.B.N.A. He lias been with the Home Bank about 
'leven years I think and most of the time in Wpg." 

He was' to come to Toronto at once to assist Mr. Haney in investig:iting the 
general position and Mr. Haney will employ outside as;:;ic;tance a:, may be re­
quired. 

This is the commencement of a promise of a thorough inve:,tigation by 
Haney and Machaffie which was never made. 

"5. The Board desire an opportunity of .going on with the business­
strengthening other accounts and straightening out tangles and it was 
with,that in view that we came here to-day in order to explain the whole 
position to you and to ask you to give them this opportunity, by refrain­
ing for a while longer from ac:;king.fhe Bankers' Association or other out­
side al.lthority to interfere. We would stay over to-morrow 11ind explain 
things but unfortunately Mr. Crerar must be in Winnipeg on Wednesday 
and I must be in Toronto to-morrow. I would like Mr. Crerar to be 
present with me when I see you in order that he may assure you, n" he 
has assured me, that he is quite sati-,fied now and that Mr. Haney has I 
the full confidence of the Winnipeg Directors. His appointment as V.P. 
was unanimous at the Board mrcting, two of the three W'p'g Directors be-
ing present. I feel quite satisfied myself that the public intcre1-t will be 
served by the opportunity a~ked for being given and if you will kindly 
give us an appointment for some day next week, towards the end of 
the week, we will come here or mec.t you in Toronto and give full infor-
mation and such undertakings as you desire that the general position will 
not be changed to the detriment of depositors, etc." 

He promised undertakings, I call that to your lordship's attmtion because 
certain undertakings were subsequently given. 

His LORDSHIP: Yes, I noticed that. 
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Mr. McLAUGHLIN: The next is No. 81, page 171, Mr. Crerar's letter to Sir 

Tho~ias White. This is the letter which Sir Thomas relies upon as justifying him 

in not making any investigation: 

(Personal). 

Sir THOMAS WHITE, 
Minister of Finance, 

Ottawa, Canada. 

"CHATEAU LAURIER, 
OTTAWA, CANADA1 March 20, 1916 

I 

Home Bank of Canada 

DEAR Sm,-You will have learned from Mr. Lash of our visit to 

. Ottawa to-day to discuss bank matters with you, and our failure to see 

you through your absence from the city. You will also have learned of 

the change made at the recent meeting of the Board held in Toronto a 

few days ago, whereby the active management of affairs is placed in en­

tirely new hands through Mr. Haney ttking the vice-Presidency, and 

assuming direct executive control, with Mr. Machaffie, the Manager in 

Winnipeg, whom, for the time being at least, he is bringing to Toronto 

to assist him. By this arrangement I feel quite certain that the knowl­

_edge and information concerning the position of affairs desired by the 

Western Members of the Board, and also the changes they desired when 

they directed their request to you, and which they saw no hope of securing 

through the then existing management, can now be satisfactorily obtained 

without calling in outside assistance. In my opinion, the situation has 

materially improved within the past month, and, at this juncture with 

tlie changes in management recently made, it is better to have the enquiry 

proceed from within rather j;han from without." • . 

(This is Mr. Haney:s idea accepted). 

_ "Owing to the pos>"ibility 9f my being unable to attend a suggested 

conference with you next week, I am giving this letter to Mr. Lash so that 

he may place it before you. I may add that Mr. Kennedy, with whom I 

have discussed the views herein expressed, is in agreement with them. 

Mr. Per~.,,e., the other Western Director, is in the South, and so we have 

been unable to consult him. I feel however, that were he here he would be 

in agreement with us. 
I am, 

Yours truly, 

(Sgd.) T. A. CRERAR." 
I • 

I wish to say with reference to this letter that no great amount of considera­

ti<m should be given to it. I appreciate. very highly the great and honest efforts 

;made by Mr. Crerar and his co-Directors in the West to try to bring about 

efficient and honest management in this bank. They deserve every credit for 

it. By.t it is not only my experien<;e but the general experience of the world that 

men are unconsciously affected by their own interests, it does not matter how 

honest or able a man may be, up to the present time the Lord has not created 

anybody who is a safe judge where his own interests are concerned. 
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I, can visualize the position of Mr. Crerar, who I respect as highly as I respect anyone, I can feel the influence that Mr. Haney would have upon him. It started first at Winnipeg; Mr. Haney said if there was an outside investigation it would cause a run on the bank and we would have to close our doors. Our asset<i are in surh shape that' they cannot be readily realized, insolvency would be the only result. You are President of the Grain Growers Company, your company has 1,000 share:;, yolf have 66, _you do not want to take any risk of anything arising that would close the doors of the bank and let you and your company in for the double liability. That was Mr. Crerar's position at the time he wrote that letter. Without questioning for a .moment his good faith, he was in the position that that was one thing he must avoid, a run on the bank, beeause he knew, none better, that a run would have closed its doors and brought about immediate liquidation. No per~on was so highly interested us he was, the PreRident of the Grain Growers Company, the large.,,t legitimate shareholders in the bank, owing 1,000 share,;, and with considerable stock ,of his own. When it was put t-0 him in that way, and further when he went down to Ottawa and Mr. Lash, contrary to his own well-considered opinion but acting on his instructions from Mr. Haney, put the same thing to him and said: "Mr. Crerar, an out-,ide investigation will cause a run on the bank which will clo':ie its doors and put it in the liquidation" could Mr. Crerar be otherwise than terrified, you might say, at what the result might be? I think Sir Thomas White should have taken that into consideration. He knew Mr. Crerar was reprpsenting a company which was the holder of 1,000 shares and also a considerable stock­holder himself, and by reading between the lines and seeing from the corre­spondence before him how Mr. Haney's insidious suggestion, taken over by Mr. Lash and handed on to Mr. Crerar, led Mr. Crerar to believe that an out­side investigation might cause a run on the bank which was the one thing above all others that Mr. Crerar was interested in preventing. 
I say that again, I want to be perfectly clear about that, because I have the highest respect for- Mr. Crerar's integrit,Y and what he did for the purpose of saving the situation. But I have never come across up to the time of thiR investigation, and I do not know if I have here, any superman, and I do not know anybody who would not under similar circumE:tance'l, unconsciously I believe, and perhaps consciously too, feel that above all thing;s, in his own interest and the interest of the company he represented a run on the bank had to be prevented. ' 
Then further he had the promise that a thoroug;h investigation would be made by Mr. Haney and Mr. Machaffie, Mr. Machaffie espe~ially in whom he had great confidence. • So I think he may be excused and pardoned for writing that letter, but the per::,on to whom jt was written should have taken into consideration the cir­cumstances, the fact that Mr. Haney, the President of the bank, was s..o anxious to avoid an independent investigation, and had, imposed and impressed his ideas on Mr. La:ih contrary to his own views, that should in the mind of Sir Thomas White, if he had been giving, his mind to -the subject, have increased his suspici9n rather than diminished it. ' 
The next is exhibit No. 82 on page 171, Sir Thomas White's acknowledge-ment to Mr. Crerar. · • · 
Then we have exhibit No. 83 on page 172. Up to this time Sir Thomas White has always insisted that the matter should go to the Bankers Association, notwithstanding Mr. Lash's previous correspondence. Sir Thomas White was the only independent person. Mr. Haney was not independent, Mr. Crerar under the circumstances could not be independent, Mr. Lash was counsel for the bunk and he could not be independent; Sir Thomll;.s White 
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was the only person who at this point stood between the public and the disasters 
that have 'occurred. This resume of a conference between Mr. Lash and Mr. 
Haney on the one part and Sir Thomas White on the other at Ottawa explains 
how that was brought about: 

HONOURABLE Sir THOMAS WHITE, 
Minister of Finance, 

Ottawa, Ontario. 
Re Home Bank 

TORONTO, March_ 23, 1916. 

Sm,-Referring to the interview which Mr. M. J. Haney and I had 
with you yesterday, I beg to record what took place, in order that no 
misunderstanding with respect to it may arise. If I set forth the position 
correctly, will you kindly say so in acknowledging receipt of this letter; 
if, however, I have omitted anything material, or incorrectly sbted any­
thing, please call my attention to it." 

I only refer to a few paragraphs, I know your lordship will read it all. 
I • 

"(3) The Board was convinced that important changes in the man-
agement of the Bank were required, not only for the purpose of ascer­
taining its actual position by an inspection conducted under the direct 
authority of the Board, but also for improving the Bank's position with 
respect to the existing accounts, and for conducting its future operations, 
and since Mr. Fisher handed you the statement referred to, the following 
changes have been made, namely:-" 

Then paragraph (c) ::__ 

" ( c) Mr. Machaffie, MaI}ager of the Winnipeg Branch, has been 
brought to Toronto to act as Mr. Haney's chief assistant. Mr. Machaffie 
is regarded as one of the ablest officers in the employment of the Bank. 
He is a trained banker, and before coming to the Home Bank, he was in 
the scn:ice of the Merchants Bank and the Bank of British North Amer­
ica. He is no way responsible for the general management in the past. 
and he has managed the bu-,iness in Winnipeg :oatisfactorly He has 
been with the Home Bank six or seven year!"." 

Then the latter part of paragraph 5:-

"I handed you yesterday a letter from Mr. Crerar "supporting the 
request which I made to you on behalf of the Board, and I may now 
state, without hesitation, that Mr. Haney and the three Western Directors 
are in entire accord, I believe the whole Board is now in accord. I men­
tion the Winnipeg Directors and Mr. Haµey specially, on account of 
their position, ·and the understanding with the Board that the important 
affairs of the Bank will be under their guidance." 

• Now Mr. Crerar denies that absolutely, the important affairs of the pank 
were never under their guidance, were never submitted to them. 

Parapraph 8:-

" (8) With a view to ascertaining the actual position of the Bank, 
a thorough investigation will be made, -under the directions of Mr. Haney 
and :!\1r. Machaffie. The Board is of opinion that the res.ult of this in­
vestigation will show that the capital of the Bank is intact, and that no 
loss will be suffered by any of its depositors or creditors, provided that 
it i~ n[)t compelled, by a run or depositors, to close its doors. The Board 

• 
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feel strongly that if they are allowed to conduct this investigation from 
the inside, instead of having it conducted by someone sC'nt in at the 
instance of the Financial Department or the Canadian Bankers' Associa­
tion, nothing will happen, which would cause a run by depositors, but 
tJiat if the investigation be conducted at the in~tance of any outside auth­
ority, the ch.ances are that statements will be made, and things will be 
mid about the Bank, which will cause a run, and which will force the 
Bank to close its doors. This opinion is not based upon any want of 
confidence in anyone who may be sent, or upon any fear that such person 
would himself disclose the confidence entrusted to him, but experience 
has shown that no person can be sent from the outside to investigate 
t.he affairs of a Bank, without it.s becoming known sooner or later that 
he has been sent from the outside. This probably results from i::ome un­
guarded though innocent remark made by some member of the Bank's 
own staff." 

I would like to know what experience there is to support that, wh'at intima­
tion ha::; ever been made to your lordship of any instance where it has occur­
red? Mr.. Lafleur in his cross-examination of Sir Thomas White mentioned 
the instance of the Merchants Bank and one bank after another where investi­
gations had been conducted secretly and Sir Thomas could give no instance 
to the contrary. Mr. Machaffie and Mr. Edwards: are both of the opinion, with­
out any doubt whatever, that the affairs of the bank could have been im·esti­
~ated without anyone knowing about it. Mr. ~Iachaffie said that the Easter 
holidays were coming and it could have been investigated then and the informa-

•tion-obtained even without a man going into the bank by the bank's books being 
brought at night to the office of the inves~igator. 

"(12) I think it will be evident to you that all these matters which 
I have referred to, and which still require attention, can be better attended 
to under the directions of the present Board than under the directions of 
a cur11tor or liquidator, in fact it would be impoec::ible for a curator or 
a liquidator to bring any of them to a Eiuccessful termination." 

So it was still Mr. Lash's opinion and Sir Thoma::; Whits's opinion that an 
investigation would result in a Curator or Liquidator, or why is the· matter so 
often mentioned? 

"(14) You informed us that you had given much thought to the 
position of the Home Bank since Mr. Fisher had called upon you in 
reference- thereto, that the public interest must, at all time_, be your guide 
in any decision which you might come to, and that in view of the state­
ments made to you by Mr. Haney and myself, and of the statements in 
a l~tter which I handed you from Mr. Crerar, you thouirht it would be 
in the public interest to comply with our request, and that you would 
do so for the present, always reserving to yourself the fullest right to take 
any step, at any time, which you might think the public interest called 
for." 

Then we have exhibit No. 84 on page 175, Sir Thomas White's reply:­

OTTAWA, March 25th, 1916. 
Re Home Bank of Canada 

Dear Mr. LASH,-! have yours of the 23rd in~tant in which you set 
forth substantially what occurred at our interview on Wednesday. You 
clearly understand that I re::;erve to myself the fullest liberty to consult 
with the President of the Canadian Bankers' Association or take any 

I 
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othei; step which I may deem to be in the public interest without further 
communication with Mr. Haney or yourself on the subject. In the mean­
time it appears tq me from the statement of yourself and Mr. Haney 
and from Mr. Crerar's letter that the position of the bank is being im­
proved. I should like to have from you an assurance that interest upon 
the Frost acount will not be taken into profits distributed to sharrholders 
in the way of dividends. It would appear to me also that until, the New 
Orleans situation is cleared it would be advisable to pursue a similar 
course respecting that account. 

Yours very truly, 

Z. A. LASH, Esq., K.C., 
Canadian Bank of Commerce Building, 

Toronto. 

We have Exhibit No. 85 on page 176, which is Mr. Lash's_ reply:-

Sir THOMAS WHITE, 
Minister of Finance, 

Ottawa, Ont. 

" TORONTO, March 28, 1916. 

Re Home Bank. 

DEAR Sm THOMAS,-! am in receipt of yours of 25th. 
I think I can give you the assurance that interest upon the Frost account 

will not be taken into profits distributccd to shareholders in the way of divi­
dends, and that until the New Orleans situation is clea~ed up, a similar course 
will be pursued. 1 

I shall bring your letter to the attention of the Board, so that there may 
be no mistake about it. 

Faithfully yours, 
(Sgd.) Z. A. LASH." 

Now I am not questioning Mr. tash's good faith, he was a gentleman in 
whom we all had a great deal of personal confidence, Mr. Lash must have got 
this assurance from Mr. Haney because he would not take it from Mr. Mason, 
yet when it came to the end of that year, only six weeks later, the bank took 
that interest into profits and paid it out it dividends. If they had not taken 
it in, the year's operations would have shown a loss and they could not have 
paid a dividend, and if they had passed the dividend the result in all prob-
ability would have been liquidation. • , 

Then on the 23rd of March the matter is dropped. There is no further 
correspondence of any importance. On June 14, Exhibit No. 86, Mr. Haney 
writes a short letter to Sir Thomas which states that there is harmony in the 
Board, but the ,iµvestigation that they had promise.cl should be made by Mr. 
Haney and Mr. Machaffie was not referred to, and Mr. Machaffie says was 
never made. 

Exhibit No. 87 is merely Sir Thomas White's reply to that letter. 
Then although Sir Thomas White had the assurance of Mr. Lash that an 

investigation would be made by Messrs. Haney and Machaffie and that the 
interest on the Frost and New Orleans loans would not be taken into profits, 
for two years and five months he made no enquiry whatever whether that 
inspection had been made or the_se assurances carried out. 

Sir Thomas in his evidence stated to me that he felt that his duty to the 
public as a Cabinet Minister would be just as great, if not greater, than would 
be his duty to a private client. If Sir Thomas White as a solicitor and counsel 
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had a case which involved $10,000 and not $100,000,000, as this did, or even a 
case which only represented $100, given into his charge to investigate, and if he 
dropped it under circum&tancrs like ,this and too}{ no further notice, paid no 
further attention to it for two years and five months, he would certainly cease 
for ever and all time to do business for that rlicnt. 

I do not want to make this thing personal, I think Sir Thomas White 
along with Mr. Crerar is to be pardoned, that he had some exceedingly good 
excuses which I will mention later, and I do not want to minimize in any way 
whatever the great services which he rendered to the country, I would much 
rather emphasize them, but I mention at thi1:, time this big silence for two years 
and five months. 

Then in Exhibit No. 88 the matter came up again in a letter from Mr. 
Machaffie to Sir Thomas, dated Augu::,t 29", 1918, in which he says:-

Hon. Sir THOMAS WHITE, 
Minister of Finance, 

Ottawa. 

" OAKVILLE, ONT., August 29, 1918, 

Home Bank of Canada 

DF.AR Sm THOMAs,-Refer,ring to the report of James Fisher KC. to you 
on February, 1916, and to a conversation with the writer in December of that 
year; at that time there seemed some hope of selling a substantial portion of the 
British Columbia timber held in the A. C. Frost account to a pulp company, 
this sale however did rnit materialize; this situation therefore is that the divi­
dends for the years ending May, 1916, and May, 1917 were based on the addi­
tion of interest to doubtful ,accounts--in each year some 30 per cent more th~n 
amount of dividend being added to· the Fro1:,t account alone-dividend for year 
ended May, 1918, was based on the anticipation of a profit in a British 
Columbia shipbuilding enterprise, in which the Bank is to receive 25 per cent 
of the profit, the balance being divided between M. J. Haney, President, C. A. 
Barnard, a Director, and F. J. M. Stewart, a per:;,onal friend of Mr. Haney's. 
In this connection a considerable amount of the bank's funds is locked up." 

The bank furnished the fond for these speculations, some of them turned 
out succe:;sfully, and the profits were divided between Messrs. Haney, Barnard 
.!:tnd Stewart and the bank, each getting 25 per cent; very reprehensible, because 
while the B.C. Shipbuilding was fortunate enough to turn out all right and the 
bank made some money, yet the Montreal shipping venture turned out so badly 
that the bank lost $1,000,000. The bank was furnishing the mP-!ley and Mr. 
Barnard and some of the others were sharing in_ the profits. 

"The total amount written up on the Frost account over the purchase 
price of the timber, if added to the amount of capital stock carried by 
the bank, would acc,ount for the entire capital." 

Then he goes on to mention some more thinw, your lordship will read the 
letter in full. 

No. 89 on page 179, is simply an acknowledgement of that letter, which is 
all the thanks Mr. Machaffie got for his letter. 

His LORDSHIP: Before you leave that exhibit 88, there was a prior letter 
from Mr. Machaffie to Sir Thomas wa'3n't there? • 

Mr. SYMINGTON: It was never delivel'ed, it was written earlier but not 
delivered. 

Mr. McLA-CGHLIN: That is the one he proposed to write and which they 
asked him to withdraw and he withdrew some statements made in it. 
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His LORDSHIP: Then do you tell me that during those two years there was 
no communication at all to Sir Thomas White from anybody in connection with 
the bank's affairs? 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: None at all. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: Did you refer to No. 86? 
His LORDSHIP: Yes. 
Mr. SYMINGTON: That is the last. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: The only letter from March 23rd, 1916 to August 1918, 

was that letter of Mr. Haney's and its acknowledgment, neither of which wa::1 of 
any importance. June 1916, two years and two months that there was· no com-· 
munication at all. 

Then the correspondence in connection with the August 1918 letter is exhibit 
No. 90, a letter from Sir Thomas White to Mr. Lash; exhibit -No. 91 from Mr. 
Lash to Sir Thomas White; and exhibit No. 92 to Sir Thomas White from l\fr. 
Lash. These are merely formal letters, Exhibit No. 92 says: -

"I know that Mr. Machaffie has had strained relations with Mr. 
Haney for some time past and what he says about the Home Bank and 
Mr. Haney must be regarded in that light." 

Mr. Machaffie up to that time had borne a very high character and if there 
were strained relations between him and Mr. Haney it affected Mr. Haney quite 
as much as Mr. Machaffie. 

The finrnl result is exhibit No. 96 on page 182 in which is a report by Mr. 
Haney in which he gives a very glowing account to the Minister of the progre-,<: 
of the bank and the improvement in its condition,~hich has a negative value. I 
am afraid Mr. Haney's assurances not only were not worth the paper they were 
written on but they were negative quantities, things were always the other way, 

Then No. 97 is the reply from Sir Thomas White to Mr. Lash; No. 98 and 
down to No. 105 are of no value. 

In Exhibit No. 105 Mr. Lash writes to Sir Thomas giving some more of the 
same kind of material, and copies of ledger accounts, and so on, but nothing in 
the way of independent investigation made. 

Mr. SYMINGTON: Your lo"rdship will notice that Exhibit No. 107 was 
attached to No. 105. 

Proceedirigs stand adjourned at 4.35 p.m. Wednesday, May 14th, 1924, until 
10 a.m., Thursday, 15th May, 1924. ' 


